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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of HOUSE BUILDING
FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2014 and the related
profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year
then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system
of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with
the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements.:An audit also includes assessing the accounting
policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(@) Bank reconciliation statements of various bank accounts include long outstanding
debit and credit entries of Rupees 11.081 million and Rupees 28.243 million
respectively which remained unidentified and unadjusted in the financial
statements. The management did not provide us any satisfactory explanation
regarding these unidentified entries. Further, out of fifty six (56) requests circularized
to the banks, where the Company maintains its bank accounts, having balances
aggregating to Rupees 322.178 million, we did not receive responses against forty
four (44) requests from the banks with balances totaling to Rupees 232.334 million;

(b)  The outstanding balance of ‘advances-net’ as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements is not in agreement with underlying subsidiary records at Head Office.
There was a difference of Rupees 3.959 million in outstanding principal at 31
December 2014. Further, the income on advances booked in previous years
amounting to Rupees 28.658 million was reversed in these financial statements.
Such reversals arise on recurring basis due to erroneous recording of income
owing to information system inefficiencies and posting errors;
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The Company manages different databases for its customer portfolio through
information system at head office and branches which is not integrated. On our test
check of some of the partners’ ledger accounts of advances at branches, we
identified differences in principal outstanding and respective provision against non-
performing advances, rental outstanding, group insurance premium outstanding and
property insurance premium outstanding between database managed by the head
office and database managed by branches. No exercise was conducted during the
year by the management to reconcile, ascertain and adjust these differences in the
books of account. Further, we were also not allowed to circularize direct balance
confirmation letters to partners due to such differences;

Provision against non-performing advances was not made as per Prudential
Regulations for Consumer Financing. Classification of non-performing advances was
determined by dividing total defaulted amount with amount of an installment to
calculate overdue period instead of calculating exact overdue period from the due
date. The partial amount of an overdue installment was also considered as full
installment in aforesaid calculation. We also noted that the benefit of Forced Sale
Value was not taken or less taken in some of the classified accounts while
calculating provision against non-performing advances. During the year, the
management did not carry out any exercise to ascertain and account for the effect of
this practice on provision against non-performing advances, if any. Further, during
the year ended 31 December 2011 an exercise was carried out to rectify the effects
of flawed ascertainment of the provision against non-performing advances and an
additional provision of Rupees 160.092 million was accounted for in the general
ledger. However, the management did not post such provision in the respective
partners’ subsidiary ledger accounts so far; and

The management did not provide us proper justification and satisfactory explanation
of placing following balances in Deferred Credits as disclosed in note 12.4 to the
financial statements:

i. As previously required under the HBFC (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001,
‘demand charges net of recovery expenses’ amounting to Rupees 543.433
million were included in Deferred Credits to be used for charitable purpose.
Accumulated donations paid till 31 December 2014 out of this were Rupees 105
million. Since the aforesaid ordinance is no more applicable to the Company,
the accounting treatment of demand charges, recovery expenses and donations
is not in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards;

ii. Profit commission - net of death claims received from State Life Insurance
Corporation (SLIC) amounting to Rupees 208.562 million accumulated up to 31
December 2009 was credited in Deferred Credits instead of profit and loss
account when received. Receipts of profit commission from SLIC, subsequent to
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aforesaid date, are being offset against advances which at the reporting date
aggregated to Rupees 151.976 million;

iii. Deferred credits include accumulated debit balance on account of expense
provided for doubtful insurance receivable from partners amounting to Rupees
251.159 million which should have been charged to profit and loss account
when created;

iv. Deferred credits include a credit balance of Rupees 52.503 million in respect of
insurance premium received from unidentified partners. Further, it also includes
a debit balance of Rupees 12.495 million on account of property insurance for
which no information is available with the Company;

v. Deferred Credits have also been credited with accumulated profit allocation of
Rupees 1,066.167 million up to the reporting date, which also includes current
year's profit allocation of Rupees 111.885 million. In our view, these amounts
should have been recognized in profit and loss account in the respective years.

Except for the effects of adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary, had we been able to satisfy :ourselves in respect of the matters stated in the
preceding paragraphs (a) to (e) we report that:

(f)  in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(g) inouropinion:

(i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred
during the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

(h) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations -
given to us, the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true
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and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31December 2013 and of
the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended; and

() in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr
Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Empbhasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.1 to the financial statements which states that the Company
has not complied with the minimum capital requirement of Rupees 6,000 million set out
by State Bank of Pakistan and also discloses the decision made on conversion of
borrowings (credit lines) from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) (Note 11.1.1) along with
markup payable into equity of the Company. Our opinion is not further qualified in
respect of this matter.

. ﬁco

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Charteréd Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
Muhammad Hamid Jan

Date: 22 APR 2018

KARACH]I



HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

"ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

" Lendings to financial institutions
Investments - net -

Advances - net

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES
Bills payable
Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
© Sub-ordinated loans
Liabilitics against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

NLET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
Share capital

Reserves
Accumulated loss

Advance against issue of capital
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

[SANENC RN e W TN

[
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2014

2013

- - - - Rupees in '000 - - - -

70,155 80,564
244,608 226,912
2,006,302 2,439,321
7,145,567 8,033,214
10,423,729 - 9,700,151
362,572 344,400
544,578 321,245
635,161 506,895
21,432,672 21,652,702
f“; o
11,242,300 | 11,392,300
]

7,965,974 7,887,394
19,208,274 19,279,694
2,224,398 2,373,008
3,001,000 3,001,000
743,439 713.005
(1.864,143)  (1,552,348)
1,880,296 2,161,657
218,143 218,143
125,959 (6.792)
2,224,398 2,373,008

The annexed notes from | io 37 form an integral part of thesc financial statements.
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HOUSE BUYUDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
FROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013
Note ----- - --Rupees in '000 - - -~
Rental 7 mark-up / return / interest earned 16 2,644,721 2,778,190
chml / mark-up / return / interest expensed . 17 (1,073,546) (1,102,481)
Net rental / mark-up ¢ interest income 1,571,175 1,675,709
Reversals of provision made against non performing advances - 18 174,278 378,076
Reversal of prov.ision for diminution in value of investments : 27,770 77.316
© Provision for diminution in value of lendings to financial institutions - -
, ' 202,048 455,392
Reconciliation adjustments : : 19 266 3,160
Reversal due o reliel package and reprocessing adjustinents 20 (65,645) (351,354)
" Net rental / merk-up / inierest income after provisions 1,707,844 1,782,907
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee. commission and brokerage income - -
Dividend income - -
Income trom dealing in forcign currencics . ' - : -
Gain /7 (loss) on sale of securitics ' - -
Unrealized gain / (foss) on revaluation of investment classiticd as held for trading - ’ -
Other income 2] 55.008 IL 32818
Total non-mark-up / interest income . 53,604 52818
o ' 1761452 1.835.725
NON MARK-UP 7 INTEREST EXPENSES )
CAdiministrative e\penses 22 (Lasi 230 (1323.782)
Othar provigions - write of is 23 19 (13.36001 -
Other charees : 24 (10,239) 11,557)
Fotal non-mark-up 7 interest expenses . (1,504,459) (1,348.699)
256.993 487.020
- Shure inLesults of an associate before taxation 7.8 - -
_PR()I-'IT BEFORE ALLOCATION FOR
STATE BANK OF PAKISTAN SUHARE 256,993 487,026
State Bank ot Pakistan share of foss un credit lines 1222 47.842 -
304,835 487,026
PROFIT BLFORE TAXATION
Faxation 25
- Current.
- ot the vear (152.667) (1()4.917>|
- prior year - -
- Delerred - - '
(132,667) (104,917) -
PROF!IT AFTER TAXATION 152,168 382,109
Basic & diluted carnings per share - Rupees 26 0.51 1.27 5\\ ’

The annexed notes from 1 10 37 form an integral part of these financial statcments.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013
e Rupees in '000- - - - -

Profit {or the year ) 152,168 382,109

- Other comprehensive income - . -

Items. that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - (656,852) 378,048,
- Delerred tax on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 223,333 (128,536)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to protit and loss

(433,529) 49,51

ro
]

Tolal comprehtensive income for the year (281,361 631,621

Surplus / deficit on revaluation of 'available-for-sale' sccuritics is presented in statement of financial
position under a separate head below equity as "Surplus / (deficit) on revalnation of assets” in
accordance with the requireiments specified by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Sixie Bank of
Pakistan vide its BSD Circular 20 dated August 04, 2000 and BSD Circular 10 datec duly 13, 2004. !

. ' '.\‘('4

Ihe annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. !
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Statutory  Accumulated

Share capital Total
: reserve loss
Rupecs in '000
. Balance at December 31,2012 3,001,000 636,583 (2,107,547) 1,530,036

C omprel ensive income for (hL year

_ Profit afier tax for the year ' :
ended December 31, 2013 :| - - 382,109 382,109

“Other. comprehensive income - - 249,512 249,512
- - - 631,621 631,621

Transfer to statutory reserve * - 76,422 ) (76,422) -

Balance at December 31, 2013 3,001,000 713,005 (1,552,348) 2,161.657

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit after tax for the year '
“ended December 31, 2014 : -—.} - 152,168

152,168
433,529)
81.361)

Other comprehensive income - - (433,529) (4

- - (281,361) (2
Transler o statutory reserve * - 30,434 (30,434) -
Balance at December 31, 2014 3.001,000 743.439 L,_S'_él};l_llg)____ 1.880,296

This represents reserve created under BPD circular No. 15 0f 2004 which rcqunes the Company to credit w
its reserve an amount not less than 20% of its after tax profit till such time the reserve equals the amount of -
paid-up capital. (hereafler, a sum not less than 5% of its after tax profit shall be credited to the said reserve. ) i

The annexed notes from | to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013
. : Note - Rupees in '000 -
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES |
Profit befole taxation 256,993 487,026
Adjustments:
Depreciation . 21,810 22,780
Amortization of intangible assets 294 630
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (1,013) (1,625)
Fixed assets adjustments - 13
Reversal of provision for dimunition in value of investinents (27,770) (77,316)
~ Reversals of provision made against non performing advances (174,278) (378,076)
Reconciliation adjustments (266) (3,160)
Reversal of rental income 65,645 351,354
Rental / mark-up / return / interest expensed 1,073,546 1,102,481
957,968 1,017,081
. 1,214,961 1,504,108
(Increasc) / decrease in operating assets
Advancces (614,579) 217,697
Lending to financial institutions 433,019 (2,258, 263)
Other assets excluding advance tax 81,651 48.63
° (100,909) (l;9‘)2,548)
Inerease / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Borrowings (150,900) (303,000)
Other labilities 119,046 268,074
(30,954 (54.,926)
Financial charges paid (2,053,570) (39.747) '
[iicome tax paid (32,046) {166,595)
Net cash used in operating activitics (1.001,618) (729,709)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expendituie (40,281) (85,317)
Sale proceeds {rom disposal of operating fixed assets 1,018 1,625
[nveéstiments niade-net 1,048,168 688,624
Net cash flows {rom investing activities 1,008,905 804,932
C. CASH FLOWS FRODM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 75,223
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 232,253
© Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 27 307,475
The annexed notes from | to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. A
\
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The House Building Finance Company Limited (:he Company) is an unlisted public limited company
incorporated in Pakistan on June 13, 2006 under the Companics Ordinance,1984. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Finance and Trade Cenue Building, Sharah-c-Faisal, Karachi, in the province of Sindh.
Pursuant 10 a vesting order SRO.1/2007 dated July 23, 2007 issued by the Finance Division - Government of
Pakistan eflective from January 01, 2007, the Company had taken over all asscls. running business, contacls,
liabilities and proccedings of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBIC), cstablished in 1952 under the
House Building Finance Corporation Act 1932 (XVIIL of 1952) by the Governiment of Pakistan from cloS‘ing of
the business on December 31. 20006. '

The Company is designaied as a linancial institution by the Federal Government and is providing financing
facilitics tor the construction. reconstruiction, renovaticn and purchasc of houses through a network of 46 district
olfices and 10 zonal offices throughout Pakistan including Azad Jammu and Kashmir. According to credit rating
report dated July 12, 2014 of JCR-VIS, the long term and short term ratings of the Company are "A” and "A2"
respectively.

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 19 dated Sche',ﬂbcr 05, 2008 the minimum paid up capital requirement
(free of losses) of the Company at December 31, 2009 and in future periods is Rs. 6 billion il further
notification. The paid up capital of the Company (Ivee ol losses) as at December 31, 2014 is Rs. 1.880 billion.
Stale Bank ol Pakistan vide its letter No. BSD/BAID/659/2145/2012 dated February 16, 2012 granted exemption
to the Company from the minimum capital requitement till December 31, 2012 or completion of privatization /
restructuring process. whichever is later. The Company is in process of (inancial restructuring and proposal in this
regurd was submitted o the Ministry of Tinance and State Bank of Pukistan.

During the year. a meeting has held on 11 July 2014 between the representatives of the SBP, Sweeurilics end
Exchange Commission ol Pakistan and the Compiny under the chairmanship of the Finance Minister,
Government of Pakistan, whereby it has been decided that the Comnpany's totui outstanding debt of Rs. 11.242

“billion payabic to SBP along with markup payablc of Rs. 2.448 billion (i.c. aggregating to Rs. 13.690 billion)

shall be converted into SBP's investment in the equity of the Company and the remaining portion of markup of
Rupees 2 billion of outstanding markup as of June 30. 2014 will be paid up by the Company immediately. The
decisions of the aforesaid meeting has been coramunicated o the Company by Finance Division. Gevernment of
Pakistan vide its notification No. F.H2)IF-1/2011-Vol-11/1104 dated Juiy 15, 2014 and WNa. F.6{9)-1F-111/2008
dated July 24, 2014 and the Company vaid Rupees 2 bislion in conipliance with the directives on Augzust i8.

In view of the above, the management of the Company is confident that the shortfall against minimum capite!
requirement is temporary and the Company will be'in compliance with the minimum capital requirement.

BASIS QF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance

These tinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) and the directives issued by the

Securities and Fxchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) including BSD
Circular No. 04 dated February 17. 2006, Approved accounting standards comprise of such liternitionalt

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)Y issued by the International Accounting Standurds Board and Islamic

Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistuan as are
notified under the Companics Ordinance. 1984, In case requirctuents differ. the provisions of the dirceiives issued
under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 and dircetives issued by SBP shall prevail.
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2.3

The SBR through its BSD Circular Letter No. |1 dated September 11, 2002 has delerred the applicability of
Internaiional Accounting Standard (1IAS) 39, TFiraacial Instruments: Recogrition and Measurcment' and
internationar Accounting Standard (IAS) 40, 'Investment Property' till further instructions. Further, according Lo
the notification of SECP dated April 28, 2008, IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has not been made
applicable Tor companies engaged in housing [inance services. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards
have not been considered in the preparation ol thes: financial statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

- Requirements of Section 24(20)d) of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC) Act, 1952 as amended by

the HBFC (Amendment) Ordinance. 2001 and ratificd by the Board of the Company in i1espect ol demand
charges have been followed.

Standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2014:

The Company has adopted the following revised standards, amendments and interpretations of 1FRSs which
become elfective during the current year:

[AS - 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentetion - (Amendment)

) - Offsctting Financial Assets and Financia! Liabilities
IAS - 30 - Impainment of Assets - {Amendment)

- Recoverable Amount Disclosuie for Non-Financial Asscts

FRIC - 21 - Levies
There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or aller January 01, 2014 but are considercd not relevant or do not have a significant cftect on the
Company’s operations and therefore are not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amend:ments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
eftective

The following standards. amendments und interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for
accounting periods on or after January 01, 2013, '
\ Elfective dawe

(accounting 'periods

beginning

on or alter)
- 1AS 27 - Separate Financial Statemeits (Amcndmcnl)’ ' } 01 January 2013
- IFRS 10 " Consolidation IFinancial Statements’ 0! January 2015
- IFRS 117 Joint Arrangements ' , 01 .lz-‘.nuur)" 2015
- 1FRS 12" Disclosure of interest in other entities' O1 January 2015
- IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement' 01 January. 2013

There are other new and amended standards and interp clations that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2013 but are considered ot to be relevant or do not have any signilicant
elfect on the Company s operations and are therefore net detailed in these financiai statements.

Further. tollowing new standards have been issued by 1ASB which are yet wo be notified by the SECP foi the
purposc of applicability in Pakistan.
Effective date
{accounting ‘periods

beginning

on or aiter)
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classilication and Méasarement Cl January 2018
- IFRS 1% - Regulatory Deferral Accounts : 01 January 2016
- [FRS 13 <" Revenue from Ceontracts with Customers' 01 January 2017

£
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Judgment. the Company evaluates its intention and ability te hold such investments to ma

13asis of mensurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments
classilied as held for irading and available-tor-sale dre measured at fair valuzs, excluding investment in associale
which is carried using equity meinod and staif retireiment benefit schemes that are stated at the present vatuc of
the obligation.

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management
o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affoct the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets. liabilitics, income and expenses. It alzo requir:s management o exercise judgment in appiication of its
accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumnptions arc based on historical experience and varicus
uther faclors that are believed o be reasonzble under the cireumstances. Actual. results may diller from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in'the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The arcas where various assumptions and cstimates are significant lo the Company’s financiat stalemenis or
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as Jollows:

Classification of investments

In classifying investiments as "held-lor-trading” the Company has determined seeuritics which are acquired with
the intention o trade Yy taking advaniage o short term market / intercst rate moveiments,

i classilying investments as "held-to-maturity™ the Company [ollows the guidance provided in S8 circulars on
classilving nen-derivative linancial assets with fixed or deterininable payments and fixed maturity. In making this
iy.

1=

The tvestments which are not ciasailied as "held 1o irading” or "heid wo matarity™ are classified as "avaiiaixie for
sale". s

fmpairment ¢f available-for-sale ttivestments

The Company determines that avaitable-for-sale inves.ments arc impaired when there hag been a significani or
prolonged decline v the faiv value below its costy This determination of what is significant or prolenged requires

Judgment. ti-making this judgment. the Company evaiuates among otner factors. the normal volatility in share

wice. In addition. impairment may be apprepriate when there Is evidence of deterioraticn in the financial beaith
brice. In aadit ! 1ent may be apprepriate when U ! rd at the financial beait!
ol the investee. industry and sector periormance, chinges in technology, and operational and 1nancing cash
Nows.

Provision against non-performing advances and debt sceurities elassified us investments

The Company regatarly reviews its loan portiolio and debi securitics classified as investments to assess the
amount of non-performing loans and edvances und debt securities and provision required there-against. While

ssessing this requirement various factors inchuding the delinguency in thé secount, nancial position of the
borrower. the foreed sale value of securities and requiraments of the Prudential Reguilations wrc considercd.

For portfolio impairment provision on consumer edvances, the Company loliows the gencral provision
reguirement set out in Prudential Regulations.

mcome taxes

While making the estimates for income taxes currently sayahle by the Company. management looks at the current
meome tux Jaws and the decisions of appellate authoritics on certain issues in the past. Iir making provision {for
detorred taxes, estimates of the Company's future tuxazie proiits and expected reversa! of deductibie temporary
diflerences are wken into account. ‘

Employees vetirement benefit plans
The liabilities for employees retjirement benelits are detenmined as per actuaria! advice using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. The actuarial advice involves assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets.

future salary increases and [uture pension increases as discloscd in note 29, Changes ik these assumptions in
future vears may alfect the liability 7 asset under these plans in lutuie years.,
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3.2

3.3

Operating assets. depreciation avd amortization and residual value

Listimates with respeet 1o residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benelits are based on
the analysis of the management of the Company. Furtaer, the Company reviews the value of asscts for possible

impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the ectimates in the future might affeer the carrying amount of

respective item of property. plant and equipment, with a corresponding cifect on the depreciation charge and
rmpairment, .

Functional and presentation currency

ftlems included in the financial slatements are measured using the Currency of the primary cconomic enviroinment
in which the Company operates. ‘The financial stalements have been presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SlGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The signiticant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these [inancial statements are set out below.
Thesc policies have been consistently applied to all years presented. unless otherwise stated:

Baunlk balances
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose cash flow statement, cash and cash cquivalents include cash and balances with the SBP and other
banks inscurrent and deposit accounts.

Cash in transit

Coliection in transit as on the reporting date received from the borrowers / partners at the branches is treated as
cash in transit and included in the bank balances.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial instituticns

The Company enters into transactions of boirowings (vepos) from and lending (reverse repos) to financial
institutions at conracted rates for a specified peried of ime. These are recorded as undey:

Sale under vepurchase obligations

Scearities sold with ¢ simultaneous commitment to resurchase at a gpecilied [uture date (repos) continue to be
recognized in the staiement of {inancia! position and are mcasured in accordance with accounting poticics [or
investment securities. The counterparty liability Tor amounis reccived under these agreements is included in
borrowings from linancial institutions. The difTerence between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-
up/return/interest expense and accrued aver the term of the related repo asreement, ' '

Purchase under resale obiigations

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitmen: 1o resell at a specified future dute (reverse repos) are not
recognized in the statement of financial position, as the Company does not obtain control over the securitices.
Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings o tinancial institutions. The difference between
purchuse and resale-price is treated as mark-up/return/interest income end accrued over the term of the related
reverse repo agreement. .

Other lendings

Other lendings incluce term lendings and unsecured lendings to financial institutions. These are stated net of
2 fe [

provision. Mark-up on such lendings is charged to profit und loss account on lime proportionale basis using
effective interest rate method except mark-up on impaired/delinquent lendings, which are recognized on receipt
basis.

Other borrowings

These are recorded al the proceeds received. Mark-up on such borrowings is charged to the profit and loss
account on time propertion basis using ctfective interesi method.
Revenue recogniticn
Rentals / markup / return on veoular advances and investnients is recognized on time proportion basis, Mark up
< return on classified advances and investments is reccgnized on receipt basis. Gaing and losses on termination
and documentation charges are recognized on receip( besis,

9



3.4

(¢}

Additionally under Ghar Aasan Scheme, income is recognized on the basis of share in rental income und share
i appreciation in value of propesty.

Interest on housing finance under interest bearing scheme is not recognized since July, 2000 pursuant to the
decision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan..

Income from sale of housing projects is recognized using stage of completion of contract.

Income on deposits and investments other than equity instruments is recognized on accrual basis.

Dividend income. except for dividend on investments in associates accounted tor under equity method {Note
3.5(d) . is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Gain and loss on sale of investments are recognized in the profit and loss account.
Al(lvzmccs

Housing finance advance

Advances a'n'c stated net of general and specific pravisicns.

The gengral and specific provisions are made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations
and other dircctives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and ave charged (o the profit and loss account.
Non-performing advances are written off only when all possible courses of action o achicve recovery nave
proved unsuccesstul, The Company determines write-oifs in accordance with the criteria prescribed by the SBP.

Investuents

Investmenis of the Company. other than investment in associate, are classified as held for wading, held-to-
maturity and available for sale,

1Teld for trading

These are seeurities which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market
prices. interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securitics included in a portiolio in which a pattern of short-
werm profit laking exists.

Ield-to-maturity

These are securitics with fixed or determinable paymenis and fixed maturity in respect ol wiich the Company has
the positive intent and ability 1o hold 1o mawurity.

Availabie-for-sale

These are investments that do not fall under the "held for rading” or "helid to mzawrity™ categorics.
Initial measurement

All “regular way™ purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, i.c., the date that the
Company commits o purchuse or sell the assel. Repular way purchases or.sales arc purchuses or sales of
investments that require delivery of assets within the time [rame generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place. '

nvestments are initially recognized at fair value which. in the case of investments other than held-for-trading,
includes trunsaction costs associated with the investmen:s.

Subsequent measurement

Held tor trading

These are measured at subsequent reporting dates al fair value. Gains and losses on re-measurcinent are included
in the profit and loss account. ’

Held to maturity

These are measured ol amortized cost using the efieetive interest rate method, less any impairment loss
recognized w retlect irrecoverable amouns,

10



Avwalizbie for sale

Quoted-securitics classified as available-for-sale invesuments are measured at subscquent reporting dates at fair
value. Any surplus 7 deficit arising thercon is kept ir a separate account shown in the statement of financial
position below equity and taken to the profit and loss account when actually realized upon disposal or when the
investment is considered to be impaired.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and brcak-up value. A decline in the carrying valae is
charged to the profit and ioss account. The break-up vitlue of these equity securities is calculated with relference
to the agl asscts of the inves'ze company as per the laiest availabie audited f(inancial stetements. Investmerits in
other unquoted securitics arve valued at cost less impairment losses. ' '

Provision for diminution in the value of securities (exeept term {inance certificates and sukuks) is made for
impairment, if any. Provision for diminution in the velue ol term {inance certificates.is made as per the aging
criteria prescribed by the Prudential Regulations issucd by the SBP.

(d) Investotent in associute

Invesument in associated, where the company has significant infiuence, is accounted for using equity method of
accounting wherein the Company's share of underlying net assets of the investee is recognized as the carrving
amount of such investment. Differences between the atnount previously recognized and the amount caleulated at
cach year end is recognized in the profit and loss account as share of profit or loss oi associale. Distribution
reeeived out of such profits is credited 1o the carrying amount of investment in associated undertaking.

Gains and losses on disposal of invesunents are dealt with through the profit and loss account in the year in which
they arise.

The carrving values of investments are reviewed . lor impairment al cach balance sheet date. Where any such
indications exist that the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, provision for impairment is
made through the prolit and loss account.
3.0 Operating fixed assets
Tangible
Propevty and equipraent
Property and equipment are steted at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmen:. fosses (3 any). Cost of
property and cquipment coasists ol historical cosi, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / conatruction period of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to warking condition. When parts of an
Jls A & & i
iiem of property and equipment have different useful Tives, they are uccounted for as separate itenis of property
and equipment.

Depreciation on property and equipment is charged o inceme using the 'Straight Line Method' over the usetul life
ol the asset at ihe rates imentioned in note 9.2, The residual values, usctul lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriaie, al each balance sheet date. Deprceiation charge comimences Trom the
monih when the asset is avatlable for use and continues til} the month the assct is discontinucd cither through
disposai or retirement.

Subscauent costs are included in the asset's carrying 2mount or recognized as a separatle asscl, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that futurc economic benelits essociated with the item witl Jow o the Compuny and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the nrofit and ious
account tvhen incurred.

Any uain or loss on disposul of the assets is included in the profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
Intangible

intangible ussets having [nite usetul life are staied at cost less acenreulated amortization and impairment losues,

if any. [ntangible assets comprise of cost of computer soltware and patents. which are being amortized using the
straight-line method over their useful lives as staied ia note 9.3.1 Amortization-is charged from the meonth of
acquisition and up to the month of deletion. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted. y
i appropriate. aL cach reporting date.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expensc when incurred.



3.7

3.8

Capital ywork-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated ai cost accumulaied up t¢ the reporting date and represents expenditure
incurred on property and cquipment in the course of consuuction / development. These expendiwre are
transierred Lo relevant category of properly and equipment as and when the assets become aveilable for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of asscts are réviewed at cach reporting date for impairment.whenever gvents or changes in
circimstances indicate (hat the carrying amounts of the assets may nol be recoverable.  such indication exists,
and where the carrying value exceeds the estimatec recoverable amount, assets arc writlen down to lheir
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher, of an asset's fair valuc less cost to scll and value in usc.
‘The resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there hag been a change in the cstimales used o
determine the asset's recoverable amount sinee the las: impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case. the
carrying amousnt of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot. exceed the
carrving amount that would have been determined, net ol depreciation, had no impairment 10ss been recognized
for the asset in priov years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account. '

Taxation

Income wax expense cemprises of current and deferred lax. Incoine tax expensc is recognized in the proit and
loss account except Lo the extent that it relates 10 items recognized dircectly in equity or in other comprenensive
income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of tax after laking into account
applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if' any. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments. where considered necessary. relaiing O prior years arising from assessments made during the year.

Deferved

Delerred tax is recognized using the lability method on all temperary differences. at the reporting date between
the tux base ol assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the linancial reporting, purposes. Delerred tas
is caleulated at the tax rates that are expecied to apply when the, diiferences ave expecled Lo reverse. based on the
wx rates that have been enacted or substantiaily enacted at the reparting date.

Deferred wx lability is penerally rvecognized for all waxuble temporary differences. Delernred wax assets is
recognized 1o Liwe extent that it is probatle that future taxable profits will be available ageinst whicl the asset can
be witlized. .

The carrVing amount of deferred tax assct is reviewed at each balance sheel date and reduced Lo the extent that it
is no longer probable that sutlicient taxable prefit witl be available to allow whole or part of Uic asset to be
recovered. o '
Deterred lax is charged or credited in the income statement. except in the case of iters credited or charged

= L) o

equity. i ary, in that case it is included in equity. '

Employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

Pension Fund

The Company operates an approved [unded pension scheme for all its employces who have been in full time
employment for at feast 10 '_\-‘curs. The seheme provides pension based on the cmpioyees’™ last drawn pensionable
salary. Centributions are made o the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendation, The latest vaiuation was
carried out at December 31, 2014 by actuary using the *Projecied Unit-Credit” actuarial cost methiod; by applying
the lollowing significant asswimptions, for actuarial valuation of the scheme: :

2014 2013
, Per arnuin Per annum
iscount rate : . 75% 00%
D ! 11.75Y 13.00%
Expecled rale of return on investments/plan assets 759 13.00%
xpected rate of increase in salary . 11.75% 13.00%
Pension increase rate ' V.23% 10.30%
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Posi vetirement aredicsi benefity

The Company provides post retirement medical 1aciity o an employee in the following events:

. Retirement
- Death/disability during or aiter service
Early retirement from serviee

The Company's post retirement medicat benefits' structure is as Toiows:

Executives / officers their spouse and dependent children Entitfement
- for hogpitalization : . ¥

Qne gross nepsion
- for consuitation / pathological test cle. One gross pension
- [or cost ol medicine One ﬂxr\ss pengsion
Clerieal staff- -Entitiemeni
- lor hospitatization One gross pension

- for consultation 7 pathological west cle. One gross pension

- for cost Gl medicine Two gross pension

Non-clerical staff Entitiement
- for hospitalization One and half gross pension

- ler consultation / pathological test ete. One and half gross pension

- tor cost of medicine Three gross pension

Actuarial valuetion of the scheme is caried out every year and the laiest valuation way carried cut at December
21020404 waing CProjected Unit Credit aetuarial cost method. Discount vate of 11.75% iz ased by
the vaiuation,

the actuary for

Fhe actaarial gaing /- losses on re-ineasurcineint o defined benefit obligations are recognized i the other
compichensive income.

Befined contribution plan
Fhe Company also operates 2 approved non-contributory Provident Fund scheme Jor all its cmpluvees.

Conirivutions are made 1o (e Fund by the emplovees ai the rate of 12 % of thelr basic suliries in accordance with
the Fund™s ruies.

Enployees' compensated absences

Ermployees of ihe Coinpany are entitled Lo cany

Tvait (m(l accmmulate their unavaited leaves, The ruies of the
feave enceshieig scheme state that the cm]*Io\gc shall he entitied (o get 30% of his balune subject L maxintin

C180 days e he is alfowed to accumulate his balarce upto 303 days. Tue employess can avail tacir leave
badance in excess of 365 days at any time as the eveess balance will not be encashed al rutivement and wilf be
lapsed. The Conipany provides io; enp.oyecs compensated absences on the basis of actuavial valuatan iu
accordanice with ihe requirements of IAS-19. Actuacial valuation of the scheme is carricd cut alter every year and
ihe Tatest valuation was carried out at December 31, 201

toreipn cui'rcncy'lnmsnctions and trapsiations -

Monetary assets and liabilities in {oreign currency are transtated inw Rupess at the applicable rate of oichange

prevalling at the reporiing -'Jale Foreigh currency transactions during the year are translated inlo Pakistani Rnp“" \
applying the exchange rate at the date ol respective wansactions. Gains and Josses on trapsiation are incinded in »
profivand loss account currently, - _— _ \
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-3.10

3.12

3.13

314

4.1

Provisions

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitizs

Financial instruments carried on the statement of finanzial position inctude cash and bank balances, lending's 1o
financial institutions. invcﬁlmenls, advances, cerlain receivables, borrowings from {inancial institutions, deposits
and certain other liabilitics. The particular recognition methods adopted for significent: linancial asscts- and
financial labilites are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with them; Financial assets are de-
rccogiﬂzcd when the contractual right o future cash flows [rom the asset expire or is rensferred along with the
risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation speciiled in the contract is
discharged. cancclled- or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition ol the financial assets and liabilities is
recognized in the profit and loss account of the current period.

Off setting . . R _ -
Financial assets and linancial lidbilities are only offSet and the net amount is'reported-tn the linancial §tatements
when Lhere is 2 legally enforceable right to' sel-off the ricognized amount and-the Company intends either o
setleron @ net busis. or to realize the assews and w'settle the labilities simultaneously. Thcome and expense items
ol such asscts and liabilities are also off-set aiid the net amount is reported in the financial statements.

Provisions are recognized wien the Comipany has a fegid o constructive obligation as a vesult of past events, ilis
probable that an outflow of resources  wiil be requiredto scitle the obligation and a reliable estimaie of the
amount San be made. Provisions dre reviewed at cach balance sheet date and arc adjustzd 10 reilect the curient
best estimale. C : ' K ‘ ' '

Borrowing costs

Berrowing costs specitic w a signilicant addiiion of o project during its consuruction / crection period i
capitalized. Other borrowing costs arce charged to the profit and loss account 2s and when incurred,

Earnings per shiare

The Company presents basic and dituted carnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is caleulatad by dividing the profit
or loss. as the case may be, atiributable to ordinary sharcholders ol the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the prolit atributable to
ordinary sharchoiders and the weighied average number of ordinary shares cutslanding for the cllcets of all
dilutive polential ordinary shares. if any. The Cowmpany doss not account for the cffest of potential ordinary
shares while caleulating dilutive loss per’share in accordance with the requirements of the 1AS 33 'Earnings per
Shure', ' ’ '

Dividends and approgriziion to reserves

Dividend und appropriation o reserves arc recognized in the year in which these arc approved, except
appropriatiens required by the faw, which are recorded ia the period to which they peitain,

Demand charges

Demand charges (penaitics) on fate payment by the dartaers are credited to 'Deferred Credit' account. This
amount is utilized for charity purposes after netiing of recovery charges as approved by the Board.

2014 2613
Note Rujpees in '000

CASILAND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

State Bank of Pakistan . .

Local currency curr'cn.t account : - . 4.1 . 7.0,‘\)_()2 80,4060
National Baak of Pakistan .

Local currency deposit accotnt 93 104

70.155 80.564

This represents the ameunt required to be maintained by the Company in accordance with the SBP's regulations
and carries markup @ 0% (2013: 0%).
14
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6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS ’ 2014 2013
Rupees in '000
In Pakistan - Local curreney

In transit ’ - 206,495
On deposit accounts 5.1 244.608 200417
244.608 226.912

These bank accounts Carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6% to 9.23% (2013: 5% io 10.73%) per annum.

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Letters of placement : 6.1 - 100,000
Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo) - . 6.2 2,006,302 2,339,321
2.006;302 2.139.321
Letters of placement )
Trust Tnvestment Bank Limited (TIBL) 6.1.1 25,909 - - 5909
CFirst Dawood Investment Bank Limited (FDiBL) 6.1.2 75,000 75.000
NIB Bank Limited (NI3) - 160,000
30,909 180,909

Less: Provision for placemient with TIBL and FDIBL G.1.2 (80,209) (80.909)

1000010

This represents clean placement made on November 17, 2008 {or a period of 14 days al the mark up rate of 28%
per annum. The transaction renmained unsettled at maturity and rescheduling have been made Lwice, whereas.
TIBL complied with the later arrangement till June 2911, Mark-up acerued upto Febraary 130 2012 has been
received. The Company has liled suit against TI1BL:n the banking court for the recovery of outstanding dues. The
Company on prudent busis has maintained 100% provision against outstanding receivable as at Decembuer 31,
20104,

This represents ciean placement made on September 12 2008 for a period ol 94 days at the mark-up rate of 17%.
The wansaction vemained unseitled ul maturiiy and consequently, the Compaiy had filee suit against FDIBL for
recovery of outstanding principal and obtained a decre: an November 03, 2010. FDIBL has tied appeal against
the judgiment. As on December 31, 2014 the case was under exccation process. Hewever, the Company on
prudent basis has madie provision of full outstanding amount. An appeal filed by ¥DIBL is panding in Supreme
Court ol Pakistan. -

2014 2013

Rupees in '000
Particulars of provision '

Opening balance 80,909 80,909
Provision made during the year - -

Closing balance 80.909 80,969

Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo)

Suudi Pak Industrial and Agricultura) Company Limit2d 190,714 -
Pak iran investiment Comipany Limited 402,244 -
Pak Oman Invesunent Company Limited 1,011,100 985.739
NIB Benk Limited _ - 967.734
Pak Libva Holding Company (PvL.) Limited 402.244 383,848

2.005.302_ __ 2.339.321

These represent reverse v cnaing at mark-up ranging rom 6.73% 50% (2013: 977 10 9.83%) per annun
Ihese represent reverse repo lenaing at mark-up ranging 1rom 6.73% to 10.50% (2013: 9.77 10 9.83%) per annuim
and it will mature upte January 22, 2015,

Particulars of Iendiny

n focal currency ’ 2 302 .339.32

In focal 1C) 2,006,502 2,339.321]
in toreign currency - -

2.006.302

)
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6.2.5  Seccurities heta as collateral aprinst iendings to finarcial institutions

Becember 31, 2014

December 31, 2613
Held Purther Held Further
by given as by given as
Company  collateral  Total Company collateral Total
----- Rupees in '000
Pukistantinvestment Bonds 2,606.302 - 2,006,302 1,953,473 - 1,953,473
Market Treasury Bills - - - 385.643 - 385,848
__2.006,302 - 2.006,302 2,339,321 - 2,330.321

\y
\
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INVESTMENTS

Market treasury bills
Pakistan Investmen: Bonds

- GoP ljarah Sukak

Unlisted ordinary shares
Listed sukuk bonds

Term deposit reeeipts
ificates of investment

Asszociate
Takaful Pakistan Limzited
Investiments af cost
Less: Provision for diminution in value of mvestments
Impairment of investinent in an associated
~ - undertaking - Takafu! Pakisiau Limited

Investments (et of provisions)
- /7

Surplus / {(deficit) on revaluation of availavle
for sale securifies .

Total investments

Note

~ -]
[W]

~}
i3
[SS I

~1 ~J
ErNEN N

n

e
N

. 2014 B . 2013 o
«,Zi.c by Ci,nz as Total .‘Io:_ by Q:ﬁ: as Total
Company collateral Company collateral
........................ Rupeesin'000-------wmmmomnnme oo
3,328,219 - _ 3,328,219 7.606,070 - |1 7.506,07¢
5.510,028 : _ 3,510,028 - - -
100,284 _ 100,284 - - .
500 - _ 500 5001 - 500
45,661 - 45,661 63,591 - 63,591
6,984,692 - 6,984,692 7,970.161 - 7.970,161
_ 26,240 | = 26,240 1] 39360 1 - ] 39,360
| 74,517 _ - 74517 124,006 | - W 124.096 |
2544 | - 2,344 2,344 - 2,344
67,500 | : 67.500 | 67,500 _ - 67500
170,601 - 170,691 233,300 - 233,300
35,506 - 35,506 35,506 - 35,506
7,190,799 - 7,190,799 8,238,967 - £,238.967
(135.685) - (135,685) (163,455) - (163.455)
(35,506) - {35,565) (35,506) - (35.560)
7,615,603 - 7,619,608 8,040,006 - 8,040,006
125,959 - 125,959 (6.792) - (6,792)
7,145,567 - 7145567 8033214 - 8,033,214
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Investments by segments

Federal Government securities
Murket treaswry bills

Pakistan hivesunent Bonds

GoP fjarah Sukuk

Fully paid up ordinary shares
Unlisted companics 724
Term finance certificates, debentures,

bonds and participation term certificates

Unhisted sukeik bonds 7.3
Lisied sukuk bonds 7.3
{erm finanee certificaics i 7.4
Cther invesiments

Term deposit receipts : ' 7.5
Certificates of invesuncnt - Bankers Equity Limited (BEL) : 7.6
Iuvestment in an associate ) ' : 7.8
Total investment at cost ’

Lo Provision for diminutiontdn valus of invesimen 7.0

L,C}Z};fl Il!]P'dH'I'i'lCIH TSSO

e - Tekatul Pakistan Limited
investments (et of provisious) o
Surplus 7 (aelicit) on revaluauon of u\c‘ildbl\. for sale s¢ LS
Total investiaents

Murket wre {
9,994 (2()IA 09

2% 10 9.96%) and will mature upto Novermnber 26, 2613

Thess represents invesiment in Pakistan Investunent Bomds (21Bs) carvying markup ¢

miature apte Juiy 18, 2010,

[RIBRY Lepires

Sits investnent in Goveineent of Pakistes (GOP) Garak Sukuk carryin
and v mature upto November 26 2005

Thowe reprasant mvestnend in 66,123 (24013: 66.123) ordinery shares of Rel9 cach in Ko

2014 2

Rupees in 000

M3

3328219 906.070
3,510.028 -
100,234 -
360 300
126,240 9.360
45,6061 63,591
74517 124096
2,344 2,344

67.360

35.58

00

67.500

7.190.799

£.040,006

NERA

8§.053

e

LA
3
3.

1

F1L25%

2ok

7o POk anmilin At wil

vy bills are etipible for discounting with the Swite Bank of Pakistan, These carry maric up from €.48% (o

(2613 Ry, 0.080) Maarity

Jater Decerber 03,2018

sotree wind Begineering
Managerient Corporadion Limited,
Pavticulars of investment in sukuk bonds
Name of issuer Rating  Markup inte Repayment Total nominni value
2014 2013
Tupees in 000
Edea Housing Limited 7.3.1 D Jmonths Quarterly 29,240 35300
442,000 (2013 10.000) units iK1 O\f’””"‘b
Pacg value, Rs. 636 each L%
{20130 Rs. 9845 Maturity
date: Decémber 29, 2013
Chiel Executve Officer:
Mr. Muhammad /\!,njnd‘
Vuple Leaf Cement I‘aum v Ldnidied
IMLCEL)
5,562 (2013 15.562) e Bo/B 3 months Quuterly. 13,601 63,541
Face value: ). 2,934 cach WBOR phiy
[



7.3.1

7.3.2
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According to the original terms of repayment, these sukuk Londs were 1o be repaid in cight half yearly installments
starting {rom June 2009 and maturing upto December 2012 at markup of six months KIBOR plus 2.50%.

Eden Housing Limited (EHL) paid two installiients of Rs: 25 million eich and then defaulied the renayment. On June
30. 2010, EHL cntered into a restrucwuring arrangement ﬁcwrdmu Lo which outstanding pnnc' pal of Rs: 150 nillion
will be repaid on quarterly basis in the ratio of 10%, 23%, 30% and 35% in firsi. seeond, third and louxth year,
respectively, with markup of KIBOR plus 2.5% for the fnsl three years and KIBOR plus 3% in fourth year. BHL is
non-compliant with the restuctured arrangement on the reporting date and has requested for further restructuring.
Theretore. on prudent basis, the Company has made provision of 75% of the outstanding principal amount.

/\ccordina {0 the original tenms of repayment, this sukuk was to be repaid in cight cqual hall yearly instaliments at
markup ol six momm l‘ IBOR plm 1.70%, principal repay ment starting from June 2609 and imatring upto December
2013,

MLCEL paid markup till May 2009 and delaulted the repayment of both principal and markup. On Febrouary 2010,
MLCEFL centered info a restructuring. arrangement with the Company according to which Rs. 2.94 million of the
vutstanding markup from June 2009 to November 2009 has been paid and sukuk bonds have been issued lor the
remaining markup of Rs. 2.81 million. According to tae restructuring agreement, new issued sukux bonds are
repayable in bullet in two years at farkup of three mondhs KIBOR plus 1%, however. mackup payment would be
made on qua.m!y basis. ‘The principal amosnt of Rs. 73 million is payable in thirty six quarterly instathments starting
from March 2010 Gl December 2018,

Mark up {fom December 20( )9 1o February 2011 aggregating to Rs. 12.634 million was not rezognized in the books of
account being doubilul of recovery. However, uporn restivcturing such amount was agreed 1o be converted into
markup free debt except for token markup of 0.30% payadte with installment. This markup free debt is to be paid in
24 cqual quarterly installments starting from Maren 2012 tiil December 2017, The Company has also not accounted
for tuis markup free debt in its books of account by crediting the income beeause of doubts 01 eventual recovery, and
1> accordingly Kept in memoranduim accounts. The recoveries actually made there-against are recognized as income 6
receipt basis. Markup from March to June 2011 amounting to Rs. 3.51 million was receivable npto September 2011
However, Re 3.32 million were reccived and the remaining balance of Rs. 2.19 million was deferred il eceniber
2002, MLUCYL paid all due markup as per vestructuring. I BFCL filed o suit against AMZ Asset and Income Fund (o
recover the foss on acquisition of'this sukuk amounting Rs 15,157 million in the Banking Court, The manageinent. on
pruaent basis. has provided full outstanding original principal amount against these sukitks.

These vepresent investinent in 30,000 uhits -of Rs. 3,000 cach in Term Finance Certiticates (TFCs) of Pak Libya
Holding Company (Private) Limited costing Rs. 124.096 millien having maturity on February 07, 2016 and fair value
of Rs. 124.634 million. These TFCs carry mark up at & months KIBOR plus 1.60% per annum payable semi annually
whereas p‘f"incipal is pavable semi annually commencing ~om August 07, 2013, The credit rating of company is AA,
The Deputy Managing Director of the Cempany is My, IKnald ST, Bearjoba.

) 2014 2013
Particulars of term deposit receipts (TDRs) Mete Rupees in '650
Iavestment Bank
Asset Investment Bank Limiied: 2.34¢ ) 2,344

This represents balance of placement in certificates of investment (COls) 6f Rs. 200 miilion for three vears and Ks. 2
million for three months in 1996 and 1498 l(,\pk‘uu\'t‘l)’ (ugzn,_z wely Rs. 223 miliion). BEL delauited the 'rncjlt
and went ander liguidation on April 18, 2001 and uum\\ o BEL were placed before Honoralide 1iigh Cum A'Sindh.
Consequently. the Company had made provision of tull amceunt. Upto December 31. 2013, the Company received Rs.
1575 miihion (70%;) of the invested amount on the direetive ot the HofmmbL High Court of Sindh.
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2014 2013
Rupees in '6060 Rupees in '000
___Amount Rating Amount Rating
Quality of Available fur Sale Securities
Securities (f\i l.ll'i‘ll'k(:l value) ) . . . : o
Market Treasury Bills E 3,454,178 Sovereign 7.899.278 Sovereign
Pakistan Investment Bonds (P1Bs) ‘ 3..‘"1(),()28 . Sovereign - -
GOP 1jarah Sukuk 100,284 Sovereign - -
Sukuks
Listed sukuks - Maplc Leal Cement
Factory Limited I - B3/B - DB/B
Unlisted Ol'(:”n'dl')’ shares
Resouree and Engineering Manageiment
Corporation Limited - Unrated - Unrated
Total S 768490 1899218
2034 2013
Investnient in associate - Takafu! Pakistan Limited Company Restated
Nuimber of shares held 8.700,000 8.700.000
Costol'investment - Rupess in '000 87.000 87.000
Assets - Rupees in 000 377.17¢ 319,153
Liabilitics - Rupees in 000 425264 357.109
Revenue - Rupees in '000 183,381 175273
Profit after tax - Rupees in '000 5.032 15527
Pereentage ol investment 29% 29%
Break up value per share - Rupees 300 .. 322

Latest availabic financial statements
Nunie of Chief Lxecutive

Place ol incorporation

Principal business

Carrying value of investment in an associate under equity meihod

Carryving value ol investment at January 01
Share in resuits ol an associate before taxation

Share in charge for taxation

Less: impairment
Carrying value of investment at December 31

Particulars of nrovision

Opening balance
Reversal during the vear

Closing balance

Dee 31, 2004 Dee 312013

Dr. Syc.'d Arif  Dr. Mumuiz A,
Hussain Hashmi (Acting
(CEO) CEQ)
Pakistan

Iakalud business

2014 2013
Rupees in '060

163,455 240,771

(27.770) (77,316)

135.685 163,455
20
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2014 2013
7.10  Particalars of provision in respect of type and segment Rupees in '060

Available-for-sale securities

Unlisted ordginary shares : 300 500
Listed suKuks - Maple Leal Cament Factery Limited ’ 43,661 63.591

Held-to-maturity securities

Term deposit veceipts - Asset Investment Bank Limited . 2;344 2,344
Unlisted sukuks - Eden Housing Limited 4 19,680 29.520
Certilicates of investment (COls) - Bankers Equity Limitea 67.500 67.300

135,685 163.453

8. ADVANCES - Net

In Pakistan - Locaj currency

Rental Sharing Schemes 82 & 83 1,735,832 1,826,103
Interest Bearing Schemes 8.4 107.042 107,820
Ghar Aasan Scheme ) 8.5 4,241,120 4,834,697
Pukistan [ousing Authority (PHA) i 8.6 218,143 218,143
Gawadur Lmployees Co-operative Housing Society (GECHS) 8.7 24,182 20,182
Shandar Ghar Scheme 8.8 868,007 1.214.709
Uncarned jncomne ' (451,949) (633.730)
416,058, 578.973
Finuncing facility tor Smail Builders - 8.9 7,016 11,167
Ghar Ausan Flexi Scheme 810 3,972,606 4,590,648
Brsina & Saima Projects, 611 74,802 29,091
Housing finance 1o emplovees 8.12 462370 507,012
Partirers' death clatms {(151.976) (1353 5 )
Transitory disirict bank accounts - net 813 (5.856) (43.3:41)
Advances - gross . . 3 ()‘—) Y 12:5347.540

Provision for non-performing advances

LI

Specific provision

Rental Shaving Schemes 1,701,590 1,783, /|()
Interest Rearing Schemes 107.042 137.820
Ghar Aasan Scheme 536913 354,249
Gawadar Employces Co-operative Housing Socicty 20,182 20,1862
Shandar Ghur Scheme o 95741 30.953
Financing™facility for Smatll Bml( 0,208 1.725
Ghar Awsan Flexi Schenie 83,850 199.730
General provision 814 121,085 90,990
. 2,673,111 2BIT58Y

Advances - net of provision 10,423,729 . _‘_9,7\)0, 151

8.1  Particulary of advances (Gross)

Short term (up Lo one year) 3.2 l'l 793 3,221,521
Long term (over one year) 9,785.0:47 9.326.019
' ' _13.096.810 12,547.540

8.2 This represents advances under Profit & Loss Sharing Scheme, Simiplified \nhuuu, New Simplificd Schemne (NSB),
Gothabad Scheme and loan to Brecast Industries (Pvt.) L. niwd. No additional disbursement of advance under these 3
schemes has been made since 2000, Advances under NS3 have been provided upto 97% (2013 ¢ 96%4) of the gross \H\

advance whereas advances under rest ol the schenies are fuily provided.
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On Nevemnber 23, 2012, the Execative Commitice approved special reliel package to mitigate the financial hardship of
the borvowers. As per the velief package, which was valid upto Mas

h 31, 2013, on payment of the entire princisle
amouil insurance premiam. icgal / nublication charges and 20 percent of demand charges, partners are estitied for
walver of outstunding mark-up and remaining of demand charges.

No new disbursement has been made under this scheme since the year 1979, In pursuance of the decision of the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has not accrucd interest on these advances since July 01, 2000.
All advances under this category has been ciassified as "Loss" and fully provided.

This scheme was based on Diminishing Musharaka for eenstruction. purchase ol houses and replacement of existing
housing advance obtained by applicants from another financial institutions - Balance Transfer Facility (BT17) with
maximum lnuncing it of Rs. 7.5 million. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 o 240 monthly
installments. The net annual rental income is 396 of the (otal assessed cost of the house. subject Lo upward revision of
annual rent on cumlavive basts al 25% afler every 3 vears For disbursements afler May 26. 2008, constant net annual
rental income of 15.3% is charged on daily product basis on the value of outstanding units. In addition. the Company
shares appreciation’ in the value of the house at rates ranging between 2.5% te 12.5% per annur assessed for various
localitics. "New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February 11, 2009, Provision has been
made in accordance with the prudential regulations. ’

Ministry of Finance. Government of Pakistan (MoF) paid Rs. 44 million to the Company during 2009 and the
remaining amount of Rs. 174,14 million during the year. ended December 31. 2010 against outsianding amount of
advance to PHA as the transaction was guarantesd by the Federal Government Guaruntee. However, MolT through its

letter No. ¥ 10O F-11/2000-594 dated April 17, 2010 instructed Ministry of Housing & Work « (MoH&W) o pay this

amount te the Company on behall of PHA and necessary provision in this regard should be made in the Federal
Ludget. MoF in s letter further advised that the amountcol Re. 218,142 paid to the Company be utilized lor increase
in the paid up capital. Accordingly. this amount has beea disclosed as “Advance against issue of capital™ in these
finuncial statoments. Bassd upon Mol's guarantee w pay the ouistanding balance, ne provision has been inade sgainst
these advances.

Ax per the arrangerent Gawader Employees' Co-operative Housing Society (GECIES) is required to adjust the
principdl ainount of advance of Rs, 47.30 million withisn thirty three months frot December 24, 2006 through transter

of balance in cach individual case of tihe allotices of house under Ghar Aasan Schewse and nnder Shar Aasan Fle

xi
scheme after completion and landing over possession of houses. Until the wansler ol advances o individeals.
GECHS shall pay profit @ 13% per annum. Upto Dieerbir 31, 2014, advances of Rs. 27,318 miliion (2013 : Rs.
27.318 m‘;\llion;. were transforred 10 82 (2013 ¢ 82) individual cuses: ie.. 67 cases (2013: 67) under Ghar Agsan
Scheme, and 12 cases (20130 15y under Ghar Aasan Flexs Scheme amounting io Rs. 21941 miltion (2013: 21.941

million) and Rs. 5.377 million (2013: 3.377 million) respectively.

Final profit and loss sharing will be subject to {inai settlemant of accounts which shail be made within tiree months of
the completion of the project which will be audited by the person authorized by the Company. The advance is sceured
against mortgage of land. Flowever. the Company has madc provision of full amount en prudent basis.

Advinces under Shandar Ghar Scheme tor renovation ol houses only with maximuim Tinancing imit of Rs. 2.5 million
are based on Murabaka approved by ihe Board of Dircelors on Januvary 20, 2004 . The advence is repayable by the
purtners in §2 10 120 monthly installments. The Murahaba proiil varies from 8% 10 13.3% (2013 : 8% 10 13.3%) per
annun New disbursement under this scheme bas been diseontinued from February 11,2009, Provision has been made
in accordance with the p'rudcnlial regulations.

the general public with iaximum linancing limit of Rs. 7.2 million is based on Musharaka (_7:‘.311cing aporoved by the
Bowrd of Dircetors in August 2007, This advance is for a period of 12 10 13 months, extendable for further 3 months.
1w he rcpu’l‘d at the end of the tenor along with the profit ranaing from 13% w 16%, (ZQl 30 13% o 18%) per enaum. of
is transierable o ihe buyer ol the housc/apart:

Advances under 'Finance facility for Small Builders' for consiruction ol individual houses zad aparunents for saie o

mens under Ghar Aasan Scheme. New disburseanent under s seiienie
has been discontinded frons November 17, 2009, Provision has been made iu accordance with the pradential
regulations.
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Advagces under Ghar Aasan Fiexi Schicine for constiuct on, renovation and purchase of house and replacement of
aasting housing facitiey ~ Balance Transfer Facitiies (377 with maxinmum Inascing limit of Rs. 10 million is based

on Dinsinishing Musharaka, This advance is re

pavable by th 2 in 50 to 240 moenthly instatiments. The rental

income for salaried person and business persor: ¥ one vozr KIBOR with a soread of 3.25% end 3.50% (2013: 3.23%

(&

and 3 30%} respectively per annum.

There.are twe investiments plans under this scheme; varieble instaliment plan and {Ixeé investment plan. MNew
‘

distursement under variable instailment plan has been diszontined effective from July 27, 2009, Frevision has been
made in accordance with the prudendal reguiations.

Advances under 'Saima and Bisma Project' for construction of individual houses and apartments with maximum
financing limit of Rs, 10 million is based on Musharaka fnancing, This advanee is for a period 12 to 18 months and
profit is caleulated on the basis of 2 years fixed KIBOR rate. The payment of installments is commenced frem the next
month of the (:unuﬂction ol condtriction of houses and apartments.

Housing advance is given o employees as per the tems of employment for purchase of land, renovation or
= & J ! :

construction of houses. at concessional rates. These advimees are sceured against the equituble mortgage of the
propeny.

This net balance mainiy includes unpresenied chegques of ¢
at district and zonal offices.

dshursements and unidentificd collections i bank aceoants

Genera! provision against advances has been deternirted s accordance with the regirements off Prudential
Regulations for Housing Finance (Regulation FIF-9) issued by the Staie Bank of Pakistan on reguiar portfolio of
censumer faancing, '
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8.15.2

8.15.3

8.16

8.17

8.18

9.1

Non-performing advances are classified and discloszd in substandard. doubtful and less category based on
number of installments outstanding [rain the customers. The management is of the view that this is the
appropriate method for ascertaining classification of advances.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No, 10 0f 2009 dated October 20, 2009 had allowed banks 7 DFIs to avail benefit of
foreed sales value ol collaterals mortgaged withi them while determining provisioning 1equivement against non-
pcrl‘orming financing. Further, SBP vide BSD Circular No.l of 2011 dated October 21, 2011 made certain
amendments in the Prudential Regulations for Consumer Findncing with respect to allowing additional benefit of
forced sales value (I'SV) of mortgage properties held as collateral against housig finances. According to the
said circular, the impact on profitability due to availing FSV benelit shall not be available for payment of cash
dividend or stock dividend. As at December 31, 2014 the Company has availed ‘benelit of forced sales value
amounting to Rs. 19.031 million (2013: Rs. 2,397 million). Had FSV benefit of [H&SMEFD Circular No.04 of

2014 not been taken. profit for the year belore taxation would have been deercased by Rs. 19,031 million.

2014 2013
Rupees in 600
Particulars of write offs

Against provisions

. 712
Directly charged o profit and loss account - -
: 112
Write offs Rs. 300.000 and above - -
Write offs below Rs, 300.000 - 712
- 712

Particalars of loan and advances to Directors, Associated Compantes, ele.
Dents due by directors. executives or cther officers of the Company or any of them cither severaily or jointly
with any other persons: - ’
2014 2013
Rupues in '600

Balunce at beginning of year ‘ 638,549 ©024.332
Loans granted during the year 92484 11347}
Repayments / adjustraents : (123,931 (109.754)
Balance at end of year - - o €27,102 638.349

There were no debts given to any companies or firme in which the directors of the Cempany are interested as
directors, partners or in casc of private companics, as ~2mbers during the year.

2014 2813

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS Note Rupees ia "G00
(Tﬁpiml \\01‘]-(—{l)-px"(>gl'ess 9.1 273,072 245,501
Property and equipment 9.2 82,238 96,336
tntangible ussets 9.3 2,262 2,363

362,572 344,400
Capital work-in-progress )
Civit works 277457 244.886
Software designing and dey clopment 615 615

278.072 245.501

25



Property & equipment

Frechold  Office  Furniture  iectrieal Office Computer Muotor Total
land premises and instaititions  equipment equipment  vebicies
fintures
As atJasuary 01, 2013
Cost 11,646 80,948 80,330 42581 43,203 115403 57,638 431,943
Accumutaied Depreciation - (52,093} (36,77%) 27,188) (31,483)  (111,139) (57,006) (315.707)
Net book value 11,040 28855 43,552 15,393 11,720 4,244 832 116,236
Year ended December 31,2013
Opening net book value 11.640° 28,855 43,352 15,393 11,720 4.244 832 116236
Additions - - 419 - 578 2.096 - 2,093
Disposals -
Cost ’ - - - - (356) - {2.300) (2,6506)
Depreciation - - - - L 356 - 2,300 2.656
/\d}iuslmcnl's v.2 1) - - - - - (13) - 113}
Depiectation Charge - GRIERA (1,779) (2,939 " (4.080) 2.883) (130) (22.180)
Closing net book value 11,640 24.808 36,192 12434 7,618 3442 402 96,536
As ut December 31, 2013
Cost R 11,646 86,948 §0,749 42,531 43,425 117,86 55338 432.367
Accumulated Depreciation - (36,140) (14,3587 (30.147) (35.807)  (Via0dd) (33,1305 (333851
Net book value 11.640 24.808 36192 12434 7.618 3482 402 96.536
Y ear eadad December 31, 2014
Opening net booi value 11,640 24,808 36,192 12,434 7,618 3,442 402 96.536
Additions - - 259 - 4,595 2.443 220 7517
Disposals —

: I - T . .
Cost - - (73 - 1365) {136) (2.290) (2.894)
Depreciaton - ) 390 |, 126 2,290 2,589

- - (5) - : (5)
Depreciation charge - {4.047) (7,743) (2.959) (3.983) {3.009) (17 21.810)
Closing net book value 11,640 20.761 28,700 V475 8305 2,876 75 82238
As at December 31,2014
Cost 11,640 80.948 80,933 42,581 47.625 119,793 53408 436,990
Accumalated Depreciation - (60.187)  (32.229) (33_—1 06) '(39.32()) (116917 (32_‘)93) (354.752)
Net book value C1L640 20761 28,700 9.47S 8.305 2.876 473 §2,238
Annual rate of
depreciation (o) - T 1u ___lu 15-33.32 33.33 20

9.2.1 Thus represents adjustiments i order W reconcile asscls as per subsidiary and general ledper,



9.2.2 Disposal of operating fixed assels

Net . . g g
Particulars Cost  book Sale G.am on Mode of disposal Particular of
proceeds  disposal buyers
value . ) :
Cemmem e Rupees in 000 - ---- -
Hems having cost less than
one million rupees or book
value less than two hundred
and (ifty thousand rupees
Furnitere & Fixture o . . .
73 - 29 29 Auction Multiple Parties
Computer Equipment 136 - 52 52 “Auction Multiple Partics
Office Equipment 329 - - - ~ Auction Multiple Parties
g )
Mobile Phones 66 5 5 - Settlement “Ex CFO & Bx AVP
Motor Vehicles
Suzuki Bolan (GA-4113 Lo . . .
wanki Bolan (GA-d T13) 367 - [31] 131 Auclion © Adjue Sirkhali
Suzuki Bolan (GP-5033 . . o
uzak Bolan (GF-3033) 367 - 246 246 Auction Azeemuiiah
Suzuki Bolan (GP-0031 .
wzuki Bolun (GP-003 1) 367 - 218 218 Auction Azeemullah
Suzuki Bolan (GPP-7005 . .
Suizuki Bolan (GP-7005) 367 - 229 229 Auction Azcemutlah
“amialia yb-100 (KAV-5826° : . .
Yamatia yb-100 (,\l\/\\/ >826) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghar Ali
Yamabia yb-100 (KAV-5793) . -
imahia yb- 10U (KA 95) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghiar Al
Yamaha yb-100 (KAV-3789 . . .
ramana yb-100 (KA ) 7i - 7 7 Auction Sycd Asghai Al
Yamaha vb- 100 (KA V-582 . . .
imaha o-100 (KAV 3) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghar AB
Yamahz vb-100 (KAV-5785 ' ' . . .
ahi yb-100 (KAV-5785) 71 - 7o 7 Auction Syed Asghar Al
Yamaha yb-1 V-57 : : : . . .
maha yb-100 (KAV-5791) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghar Ali
amaha yb- KAV-5828 . . . .
Yam ‘h'l)l) 100 (RAV-3828) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghar Al
Yamaha yb-100 (KAV-5824 . . . .
imaha yb-100 (KAV-5824) 71 - 7 7 Auction Syed Asghar Ali
Honda CD-70 {KCV-7783 . .
onda CD-70 (KCV-7783) 72 - 8 8 Auction ~ Syced Asghar Ali
Honda CD-70 (KAK-1024 . .
oned .U‘ AR b 38 - 8 S Auction Syed Asghar Ali
donda CD-70 (KAK-1935 . .
onda CD-70 ('[\A.K 033) 38 - 8 8 Auction Syed Asghar Ali
Honda CD-70 (4 -798 - . .
onda CD-7 “_;AD 7980) 38 - 3 3 Auction Sved Asghar Ali
Honda CD-70 (QAF-6192 ' _ Ny
Honda CD 7.0 .&‘AI 5192) 30 - 10 10 - Auction ~ Syed Asghar Ali
Honda CD-70 (HCL-73) . o
anda &L (HCL-73) 38 - 10 10 Auclion Sardar Ali
- )
2014 2,894 3 1018 1,013 [
2013 2656 - 1,625 1,625 _
— T I I
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101

1011

Intangibles

Net carrying vatue -

Bul.mli:c av bepmpng of the year
Adiditpons @t cost

Amwrtizadar charge for the vear
Balance aveid of year

Gross carrying value

Cost °

Accumalated amoruzation

Net book value

The-cost 1s being amortized over a period of 3 years.

OTIER ASSETS.
Income/mart-ap accrued in locsd curieney

Investmanis

Adhvinees

Advance sor purchase of fand - housing projects

Adviees, deposits. advanee rent and other prepaymen

Advanee Finaneial Kelief to Emplovees
Advanee Laxation (payimany Jess provisionsj

Ladvances

Otz recenable aws

Proanee Comparation (PRRIFC)

Lass. Provision held apainst other assals

fUrepresenis an advancs payiment of 25% ol the cost of iwo picees of fand micasuring 163 acies siivawed i
2007 The Company intended to construct Iow cost houses on this fan

pnred ivom Paenasian Refusces Renabiiitaiion

2014 2013
Note apees in '000
7,363 2,943
103 30
9.3 2943 (630)
2,262 2,363

0774
(7,512

2,262

187,105

42203

15,1 NV
174,34

130,436

10248012 8§C.896

20,013

685,631

{36,47)

7,105
32,816
RIVEIY

157461
39.789

03]

I~

IR

1

Cawador made i

0 promute alfordable housing factlivies (o fow
ncosie zrotps of the restdents of Gawadar However, there has been o further development i thes regard during e fast

ve years aud the chiances of obiaming these piots of Tand are emote. therefore the management on prudent basis. has miede

prosvision agamst doubul recovery of this amount,

Puarticulars of provision against other assets

Balanee at beginning of the year
Charge Tor tie year

Balance avend of the year

Tlos nctude advance lax of Rs. 493.908 (2013,

S90L088 (2013 Rs. 260.35) million.

As directed vide SRO 49901380 dated May 130 1980 by Vit

HBEC) ok over assets and Daislitics of PRRFC. Further,

Ra, 4601.602) miiion which is net of 7 wiriy the provis

50,470

50,470

30470

s lor tax of Re.

1 Divigion - Goverranent of Pakistan, the Cormpany (formerly

s per the directive of the Governmeni of Pakistan ail assels and

Labilities are shown distinetively as below, however the Company does net have any control over these assets and Hebilities,




1.1

2014 2013

Note Rupees iz ‘0060
Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation Finanee Company Assets
Assets .
Fixed assets . } S
Cash and bank balances S8 | 518
Investments _ . : o 253 253
Loans and advances . : 16,533 16,583
Inter-cenige adjustment ) 2,432 2432
Other receivables 1,992 1,992
sundry debtors - o 200 200
Advances, deposits and prepayments 227 227
. : 22,200 22,206
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,579) (2,579)
- 19,627 19,627
Liabilities S ) .
Sundry creditors ‘ } 93 93
Accrued expenses ' o ’ 38 38
Return on capital 73710 7,571
Other habilities ) ) . o o . } 129 129
- - . ) Y6310 - 7.631
Net assets : . ) S : : 11,990 - 11,996
RUPRESENTED BY
Capital : 1¢,000 16,000
Accunmuliuted loss (4,004) (4,00:)
11,966 11,996
BORROWINGS
In Pakistah - local currency 111 11,242,300 11.392.300
Quuside Palastan - foreign currency - -
11,242,300 11,392,300
Detail of horrowings .
Secured
Borrow ings {rom State Bank of Pakistan - PLS credit fines L 11,242,300 11,242,500
Sukuk bonds 1112 - 150,000
11,242,300 11,392,300

[he credii limes from SBP are sccured by certificates issued oy the Company under House Butlding Finance Corporation
2 | o }
{(1ssuc and Redempuon o) Ceriificates) Rules, 1982 that are gueranteed by the Government ol Fakistan (GeP).

The credit Iimes are repayable as follows:

Amount of eredit

Credit line sumber . Repayment due on Status
lines
Rupees in '060
. 58 1,400,000 June 25,2000 Due
39 1,833,000  Seprember 07, 2007 Due
60 1,850,000 June 30. 2008 Due
o1 2,406,000 August 08, 2008 Due
62 2,200,000  Naovember 10, 2010 Due
53 : 1.053.300  July 12,2011 Due
O 300,000 February 206, 2012 Due
11,242,300 !
o i b Sk (&'
[
;l
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1. L

2

As per the above scheaunle, credit line Nos. 38 10 6+ were payable on respective repayiment date but were not paid. In
pursuance of Company's request. the SBP thraugh tts letter no. SMED Refinance 900/06-2071 dited September 02, 2000
advised the Company w repay the credit liues as per the schedule and claimed markup @) 9.5% for utilization of the said
amount after the due date Gll the date of their payment. During the year, a mecting was held on 11 July 2014 between the
representatives of the SBP, Sceurities and Exchange Comumission of Pakisian and the Company under the chairmanship of
the Finance Minister. Government of Pakistan, swhereby it has been decided (hat the Company's total outstunding debt of Rs.
11.242 billion pavabic o SBP along with markup payable of Rs. 2.448 billien (i.e. aggreaating to Rs. 13.690 bitlion) shall
be converted into SBP'S investment in the equity of the Campimy and the remaining portion of markup ol Rupees 2 billion of
outstanding markup as ol June 30, 2014 will be paid up by the Company immediately. The deceisions of the aforesaid
meeting has been communicated to the Company by Finance Division, Government ol Pakistan vide ils notification No.
FLMF-12201 E-Vol-11/1104 dated July 13, 2014 and No. F O(9-IF-11172008 dated July 24, 2014 and the Company paid
Rupees 2 billion in compliance with the divectives on August -8, 201 (Note 1.1).

2014 2013
Sukuk certificates - Secured : Note Rupees in '000
Batance as alt January (1 . © 159,060 433,000
Redemption during the year (151,000) (303,000)
Closing balance as ot December 31 - 150,000
Redemptions
Not later than one year : - 150,000
Later than one year and Jess than five years - - -
Balunce s w December 31 - 150,000
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable on borrowings
- iniocal currency ‘ 121 38 2,408
Acerued expenses 247,989 230,480
Puyable to pension lund 29.2 |.842,450 §37,504
Payable to post retiretnent imedical beneliis 29.2 791,891 PEDRDS
Payable against employess' compensated absences 29.16 522231 434,903
Refundabie to customers againsi advances ) ) 15,228 15,92
Pavable to SBP 2.2 2,985,722 o 3,965,540
Insurance pienuum payacle - 12.3 - 38,734 58,223
Detorred credits 12.4 1,502,011 1,383,827
Reimburseinent of ¢laims by Government of Pakistan 125 379 579
Retention money payuble 11,009 10,103
Applicatian fee- Gawadar Project : 3,861 : 3.884
Agents' deposit money 385 583
Otbers 3,785 3,450
' 7,96:,97 7.887,394

This represents mark-up acerued on sukuk 1ssued to various financial institutions as mentioned in note 11.1.2.
Payable to SBY
Bulance at January | 3.965,540 2,807,527
Add: Markup acerued or SBP credis lines 1] 1.0686,018 1,068,019
Less: Prior years' adjustiment 12.2.2 (47.842) -

4,985,722 3.905.540
Less Repaviment (2,600,000 -
Balanee at Deceinber 3 2,985,722 3.965 340

No profit and toss sharmg is made m the year 2014 as all cre hic ines bécuine over due in the year 2012 and henee markup
was charged thereon THowever, pursuant 1o SBP instructions, adiustinents made after approval of restracinnng plan (note
1.1) are reversed

This represents pitor veers adjustiment of SBP's share of profit 7 ioss on credit lines on reconcilistion of records with SBP
during the yeor.

IS
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12.3

12.4.1

12.4.0

13.1

Monthiy ipsurance pramaium s payable 10 Staie Life lnsurar ce Corporation of Pakisian (SLIC) wgainst the msurance of
outstanding Jues 1vom the parners in case of ihieir death or wial disabiement and insurance premium payable to Takaful
Pakistan Limited against insuzance of mottgage property. The amount of these premiums are recoverable from partiers in
thew womhily mstathnents

2014 2013
) Note Rupees ia '000

Deferred credits ‘
Demand charges - net of recovery expenses 1241 & 12,42 343,435 537,215
Protiticommission received from State Lile insurance :
Corporation - net of death claims 12.4.3 208,562 1| 208,502
Provision aguinst insurance reecrvabie from purtners (251159 —251,238)

(42,397) (42,676)
Unidentiliable insurance premitm contribution reccived |

{rom borrowers / partners during prior years 12.4.4 52,503 32,303

Property insurance : (12.4935)] (12,495)

43,008 40,608
Profit received on investnent from deferred credits 12.4.5 1,056,167 §34.282

) 1,607,011 1,488,827
Donations : 12.4.0 (105,000) (103,000
i.507.011 1383827

Demand ch:n'gés - net of recovery expenses
Demand charges recovered . 650,271 041,802
Lessr Recovery cliarges paid at Decembier 31 '
Balance at January 01 (104.589) (INEa77
Expense for the year . (2,249} (3,112
Balanee at December 31 (106,858)  (101.589)

MUERIARE EANVAR

This represents demand charges recovered after June 30, 2200 nei ol recovery expenses, transiereed 10 this aceount in
aveordanee wiih the fequiremient of section 2420d) of the House Building Yinance Corporation (FBEFCY Act, 1932 as
amended by the HBEC (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001, The Foard of Dircctors has pproved at this amaunt will be wsed
lur meeting recovery expeases and for charitable purposes,

According to the agreement with SLIC. death clanis lodped aler tise profit / commission distribution wiil be adjusied by the
Company throagh profit - comnmssion charged o deferred credit account,

This represents amount recerved n piior years™ on account of Croup Insurance Premuum frons individual borrewers / paitners
an aceeunl of rate differences. As at Decersber 31, 2800 these amoants were pending alocaiion o ndividaal paiters
borrowers. Due w0 noa-avatlability ol the relevant records, thes : amounts have been transierred o this account afier approval
ol the Board ol Directors of the Campany and will be used For reliel of widows. orphans and incapacitated partners which
are not covered by any other relied package or group insurance aolicy.

This represents investment incomic altocation against the incetie carned up to the current year by the Company it respest of
the dtems reflected inthe delerred rredit aecount using average yield.

1 2012 denaton of Ry 2.5 mitlion were paid 10 12A Endowment Fuad, in 2011 Rs. 2.5 million was paid-to Sindh Institute
of Urology and Transplartation « SIUTY and in 2010, Rs. 100 million were donated to Prime Minisier Flood Relisl iand.

o

SHARLE CAPITAL
Authorized Capiial

2014 2013 2014 2013

Numnber of Shares. Rupees in ')J0

__600,00¢,000 600.000.600  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- cach 0.000) G0 0000600 »
l\ . ‘31
\_ «



13.2

[ssued, subserib Issued, subseribed and paid up capital

2014

2013

Number of Shares

6

“

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach:

2014

2013

Rupees in '000

6 - Fuliy paid in cesh . - -
300,000.000 300,900,000 - Issued for consideration cther than cash 3,600,000 3.000.0G00
100,000 100,000 - Shares issued for considesation in cash 1,000 1,000
300,100,006 300,100,006 . 3,001,000 3,001,060
- Pattern of share holding;
187.362.506 187,562,504 - I:éder'sll Government 1,875,625 1,875,625
112,537.500 112,537,500 - State Bank of Pakistar: 1,125.375 1,125,375
300,100,000 300,100,006 3,001,000 3,601,000

13.3 As at December 31, 2014, the Company has equity of Rs. 1,72 billion against the minimum required-cquity ol Rs. 6 billion
as preseribed by the SBP for DFls through BSD Circular No. !9 dated September 05, 2008, State Bank of Pakistan vide its
letter No. BSD/BAID/639/2145/2012 dated February 16, 2012 granted exemption (o the Cempany Irom the minimum capital
requirement tll December 31, 2012 or completion of privatization / restructuring process, whichever is later. The Company
18 1 process of linanetal restructuring and proposal in this regad was submitted to the iviinistry of Finance and Stae Bank of
Palustan

During the year, it has been agreed that SBI's eredit lines (prinzipal wmount) alongwith the markup thercon will be converted
e SBPS investment in th2 equity of the Company (Newe 1:1).

2014 2013

14 SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETSH Note Rupees in "000

Available-for-sale securitics

Goverinent seeuriiies . jd.l )
FLE O Movement of surplus 7 (deficit) on revaluaztion of assels
Opening batunce (6.792) 4,110
Surplus ¢ (deficity during the year 132,751 (10,902)
Closing balance 125,959 {6,792)
15. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
151 Contingenties
Clans not acknowledged as debt 47.990 47,990

in the vear 1993, the Company had entered into an agreement with a courier service company. Subscquently, due to
unsatisfuciory service by the courier service company, the Company termiinated the contract. The courier service company
claimed indemnity of loss of Rs. 39.89 million and liied a suil for recovery from the Company which is peading in the tHigh
Court ol Sindly, The legat advisor of the Company is conlident that the Company has a strong case and no cconomiv outtlow
is expeeted. : :

I the year 2008, the Company criered into an agreement vzth a hospital in Kavachi for providing medical faciiitates /
treatment w employees of the Company and their depéndents The said. hospital lodged a clainn of Rs. 8,10 million against
the Company which include bills of the persons who were nctreferred by the Company Lo the saic hospital, as these were
neithei the Company's employees nor their dependents. Curreatly, the cese is pending for adjudication at Honorable Sindh
Fhigh Court. The tegal advisor of the Company is'confideni it the Company has a strong case and no ceonomic outflow 15
expreted. ’
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207« 2013

Note Rupees in 000
Conugiumenis

Luand for Housing nrojects-Gawadar . 149,700 149,700
Land for Gawadar office 2,750 ¢, 750
Loang sanctioned but no, isbursed 223,103 137,510
Rental due under operating lease agreements i respect of vehizles:

Not later than one year: 2,226 3.3¢8

ater than one year but not ferer than live years 1317 D 3,613
Design. supervision and construction centract for islanabad profeat 53,580 87.800
fguity mvestment in Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 200,000 200,660

RENTALMARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED

On advanees to customers 1,672,242 1.907.467

On investmensts in securiues:
Available for sale 699.549 H85.5142
[Held o maturity ' 10,561 22833
On depostts with financial institutions 1,601 12,319
Oy sceurities puichiased under resale agrecinents 243,794 106,584
Gn cwean endmy, 244 3153
2,644,721 2,778,190

RENTALMARK-UPRETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED

Markip oy suktuk sertificates 5527 A2
Markap on S eredii Haes 12.2 1,008,019 1,068,019
1,075,546 V02181

REVERSALS OF PROVISION MADE AGAINST NON
S PERVFORMNMING ADVANCES

Revernitd of PIOVISION iy s advances- it 5.3

R CONCHLLATION aaDJUSTMENTS

iuepea dcvounts sattded 19,1 260 N

This represens sdiustment made in head oitice records Tor accounts closed at district ulfices while balance appearing at head

oilice records

REVERSAL DURTO RELINF PACKAGE AND REPRCCESSING
ADJUSTMENTS

Reiiei puckage and sctllemeni scheme 201 36,987 2
M HES .
8,0-8 89,310

Reprocessing and closnig adjuy ment _ ) 2072

H5,045 351,334

This represents reversul of rented income whicl was Credited o profit and loss tecount th previous yeurs, This reversal has
beein madd as wresult o relie! package and sedlement sehene announced by the Beard of Dircclors as explaiied fally .an
Note 8 3 1o the financial statemenis.

2014 2015
OTHER INCOME Note upees o PN
nenection and apphication foe 10,893 11,222
wnn on sale ol wperaung fixed assets 9.2.2 HRAR] 1,625
Miscellancous 3870 - 39971
55,608 NS
P 33
' N}
R
i



~
~

24,

I~
N

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSLES

Sdiarcs, allowances, etc.

Charge lor defined benefit plan - pension

Post retirement medical benefits

Lmployees’ compensated absences

Repans and maintenance

Legal and professional

Ren, waxes, insurance, electricity, ete,

Stationery and printing
Advertisement and publicity
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Amortizalion ol intangible assets
Traveling and conveyanee
Postage and !ulu‘phnnc.
Entertmmient

Sccm'i\}, guard charges
Subscription and publication
Commission againsl recoveries

Others

Auditors' remuncration

Audit lee

Hall vearly review

aiber reviews and sundry advisory fee

OTHER PROVISIONS

Doubtfu! recervable of insurance premium from partners

OTHER CHARGES

Penalty nmposed by State Bank of Pakistan

Commission and bank charges

TAXATION

Current - for the year
Company

Associate

FFur prior years
Company

Deterved - for the year
Company

Associate

2014

2013

Rupees in 000

841,351
201,378
132,338

90,898

35,518

67,387

40,008
9,803
14,751

2,735

21,810
294

9,328

831,908
204,494
140,462
(9.862)
34,063
15,212
33,3;37

Lo 100
383 185
[ 250 1,250
2,735 2,735
(19 13,360
3.077 A129
7,162 7428
10,239 11,357
2014 2013
Rupees in '000
152,667 ['_ 104,<>1ﬂl
152.667 104.017
It R
152.667 104917
i 34
{\ ‘I
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26.

27.

2014 2013
Rupees in "000

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit / (1oss)

Accounting prolit before taxation ) 256.993 487.026
-~ 2290
Tax on Accounting profit @ 33% (2013: 34%) _ 84,808 165,589

Tax Lifects of:
- expenses that are not Jeducetible / deductable for determining taxable profit 67,859 (60,672)
- prior year charge : B B

- prior year restatement eftect - 3

152,667 104,917

The taxation officer while assessing taxable income for the tix years 2006 and 2007 has disallowed certain expenses on
account ol initial depreciation, demand charges, retirement beaetits, suspension of income and written-of{ loans, ete. and
created an additional demand ol Rs. 20.28 million and Rs, 39.71 million, respectively. The Company has filed appeals with
CI'T(Appeals) against the said orders. The CIT (A) in its order dated Junc 11, 2010 has confirmed the action ol Laxation
officer on aecount ol initial depreciation, demand charges, cte. and directed him to rectify his order in respeet of suspended
income and writing ofT ol income to PASMIC in tax year 2007 after verilying the documents available with the Company.
The Company had filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by CIT(A).
No provision has been made in the financial stalements in this regard as the management is confident that ultimate outcome
ol'the appeals in question will be in favour of the Company.

o

Ihe meome tax assessment year 2001-2002 and tax year 2003 are pending at appellate forums. However, as a matler of’

prudence sulficient tax provision has been made in the books ol accounts.

‘The Company has net deductible temporary differences on which deferred tax assct of Rs. 2,495.309 million arises. Deferred

tax assct as at 31 December 2014 to the extent of Rs. 1,950,731 million has not been recognized as the Company is uncertam

~about the timing and extent of future taxable profits against which such benefits can be utilized. However, deferred tax asset

of Rupees 544.578 million arising on niet acluarial loss on staft -etirement benefit recognized directly on other comprehensive

inconie has been accounted for in these financial statements wh ch will also be reversed in other comprehensive income.

BASIC & DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Proht for the year (Rupees in '000) 152.168 382,109

Weighted average number ot ordinary shares (Number) 300,100,006 300,100,006

wi

Basic / diluted earnings per share - Rupee 1.27

nluted carmmgs per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments i issue at
December 31 2014 and 2013 which would have any elfect on the carnngs per share if the option to converl is exereised.

CASH AND CASIH EQUIVALENTS Note 2014 2013
Rupees in "000

Cash and balance with treasury banks 4 70,155 80.564
Balanee with other banks N 244,608 220912
314,763 307,476
[ - 35
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29.
29.1

29.2

29.3

294

2014 2013
STAFF STRENGTH Rupees in '¢00
As at year-end

Pernanent 737 754

Contraciual basis ] 9 10
746 - 764

Average during the year

Permanient ) - . 767

Contractual basis - 15
- 782

DEFINED BENEFI'T PLAN
Principal actuarial assumptioas

The “Projected Unit Credit” actuarial cost method. using the following significant assumptions, arc used by the actuary for
the valuation:

2014 2013
----Pension fund----
Discount rate 11.75 % per annum 13 % per annun
Expeeted rate of return on investments / plan assets [1.75 % per annum I3 % per anaur
Expected rate ol increase in salary 11.73 % per annum 13 % per annuy

N H C 3 0 - AN ) I
Pension increase rale 9.25 9% per annum HO.3 % per annus

Movemerrt in payable to defined benefit plan

Post retirement

Penston fund Medieal benefits
2014 2913 2014 2013
-------------- Rupees in 000 —--eommeemev
Opening net lability 837,504 934,681 939,992 1.063.934
Lixpense for the vear 201,378 204,494 132.338 140462
Beneiit paviments (118,327) (113.250) {15.200) LT
Other Comprehensive Income 022.095 (188.421) (263.233) (189.627)
Jadanice al December 31 1.842.4350 837.504 791,891 939,992

Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan
Post retirement
Pension fund Medical beaelits
2014 2013 2014 2013
-------------- Rupees in 000 ——meome—-

Present value ol defined

benetit obligation 4.559.651 3.237.201 791,891 939.992
Fair value ol plan asscts (2.717.200) _ (2,399.696) - -
Net liability at Decenmber 31 1.842.451 837,505 79891 939,992
Post retivement
Pension fund ~ Medical benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013

------------- Rupees in 00 ----mmeeveeene
Charge for defined benefit plan

Current service cost 100,207 103,518 25113 235,859
Net Interest 101,171 100,976 107.225 114,603
201.378 204494 132338 140.162

2014 2013

Rupees in "000
Actual return on plan assets
Pension fund

317504 194176
( .
1 36
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29.6 (Iumpusilion of Fair Value of Plan Assets

2014 2013 2014 2013
Rupees in '000 Yo age
Pension Fund
Govermment Bonds and T1PC's 2.716,942 2.138.272 : - 99.99 8911
Bank Balances 258 261.220 0.01 10.89
: 2.717.200 2,399,492 : 100.00 100.00

29.7  The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interast investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
reporting date. Expected return on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return expericrieed in the market.

29.8  Five year's data on surplas / deficit of the plan and actuarial adjustments

2010 2011 2013 2014
I Rupeesin 000 ----w--oomomemmven >

Pension I'und

Present value of detined benefit obligation 2417489 2,620,728 3,140,201 3,237,201 4.559.651

Fair value of plan assets (1.654.048) (1.887.567) (2.205.520) (2.399.696) (2.717.200)

Delicit 763441 733.161 934,681 837505 1.842,151

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (927.638) (247.879) 225750 91,017 989.519

Actuarial (loss)/gains or plan assets 5,543 59,458 (72.569) (12.438) (35.239)
29.9  Post Employment Medical Contribution . .

Present value of defined benefit obligation 791.891 939,992 1.003,934 738.826 (638,194

Actuariad (gain) / loss on obligation (265,233 (189,627) 163,563 53,134 225831
29.10 Compensated Absences

Movement in payable te defined benelit plan

Opening net lability 434,903 149.774

Expueise for the yoar 90.898 {9.802)

Benetit payvments (3.570) (5.009)

Balance al December 31 522.231 434.903

30, COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing Director Directors Executives

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

IR Rupees in 000 - - - - - - cem oo >
Dirccrors Iees - - 230 - -
Managerial remuneration 2851 - - - 20.219 19.305
Rent aind house maintenance 1.710 _ - _ 14.475 12.743
Utilities 239 - - - 1174 1,273
Medical 236 - ) - - 3,649 3,980
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,466 - - - 12,594 12,742
Others 1.540 . 104 . 14557 . 18926

8.042 - 334 - 66,068 68969

Number ol persons 1 . 7—- - 22 21

301 Executive means cmiployee. other than the Chief Executive and Directors, whose busic satary exceed [ive hundred thousand

rupces in a financial year.

30.2° The Company also provides free use of the Company maintained car o Managing Dirccior and Exccutives in accordance
with their entitlements. P
1 37
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1.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of traded nvestments other than those classified as held to maturity is based on
quoted market price. Fair value of unquoted cquity investments is determined on the basis of
break up value ol these investments as per the latest available financial statements,

[Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be
calculated with sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such
asscts and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. The
provision (or non-performing advances has been calculated in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy as stated in note 3.4 to thesc Hndncml stalements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturity are stated in note 34.3.1 and 34.4.1.

The management is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and
liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilitics
arc cither short term in nature or in the case of customer advances are frequently repriced.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Refated parties comprise associated undertaking, retirement benelit plans, directors and key
management personne! ol the Company. Thesz transactions were made on substantially the
same commercial terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
unielated parties and did not involve more than a normal amount of risik. There were no
transactions with the key management personnei other than those under the terms of their
emoloyment. Details of transactions with the rejated parties other than those which have been
disclosed elsewhere ni these financial statements; are as follows:

: 2014 2513

Relationship Nature bi Transaction Rupees in G0
Associated undertaking
Takaful Pakistan Limited Insurance premium paid 9,226 8,963

Insurance claims received , 40
ey manageiment personnel Proceeds from disposal of 3 36

operating fixea assets

Loans and advances 66,273 (67.225
Retirement benefits plans Pension fund 7,896 6,996

: Post retirement medical benefits 3,789 3,848

The related party status-of outstanding receivables and pe 1y<1b es as al Decemnber 31, 2014 are
mcluded in respective notes 1o the financial siatements.

Remuneration o key management personnel is disclosed i Note 30 w these financial
statements.

P .38
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33.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

State Bank of Pakistan (SBPy requires Banks/DFls 10 maintain regrlatory capital for eredit, inarket and operational risks which should
atleast be equal 10 10% of total risk weighted assets. As per SBP BPRD Circular no 06 dated August 15, 2013 wherein SBP has asked
banks/DFIs to implement Basel LI reforims issued by the Basel Comnuttce on Bauking Supervision (BCI3S) to further strengthen the
capital retated rules. The Company has implemented Basel 11 -franiework in“the lght of SBP instructions, The Company monitors its
capital adequecy ratio and endeavors to maintain it at a fevel sufficiently higher than the minimum regulatory requirement. The Company
calculates:capital requirement as per Basel [11 regulatory framework. using the Standardized Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk
whereas Basic tndicator Approach for Operational Risk,

Objeetives of Capital Manazement

The capital management objectives of the Company are as follows:

- To maintain sulficient capital to support overall business strategy, :xpansion and growtly;

To integrate capital aliocation decisions with the strategic and financial planning process:

To meet the regulatory capital adequacy ratios as defined by SBP;

To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue o provide adequate return to sharcholders;
and

To have a prudent bufler to protect the Company under diflerent cconomic and stress scenarios caused by unexpected and
unforesecable events.

In order to stiengthen the solvency of Development Financial Institutions (DFIs), SBP through its BSD Circular No. 19 of 2008 dated
September 5, 2008 has asked to raise their minimum paid up capital 10 Rs. 6 billion (free of losses) up to Dacember 31, 2009. However,
there is a shortfall of Rs. 4.12 billion in minimum capital requirement. In order to meet the shortfall, the Company has approached its
sharcholders i.c. Ministry of Finance and State Bank of Pakistan, to inject the required capital, the eventual outcome of which has been
disclosed i Note | 1
' . .

SBP through its BSD Cireular No. 07 of 2009 dated Apr‘ii 15. 2009 has also asked Lo achieve the miinimum Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR) ol 10%. The capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of the Company stands at 22.57% ol its risk weighted exposures as at December 31
2014, The Company has maintained capital adequacy ratio well above 10%,

The capital adequacy ratio of the Company was subject to the Bascl I capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State Bank off
Pakistan through its circular BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 dated Angust 15, 2013.

These instructions are effective from December 31,2013 in a phased ianner with full implementation intended by December 31,2019,
Under Basel 1 guidehines banks 7 DFIs are required 0 maintain the tollowing ratios on an ongoing basis:

Phasc-in arrangement aind full implementation of the minimun capital requirements:

Soo | Ratic U 2013 [ 200e [ 015 L 2016 | 2007 2018 | 2019 ]

| CIEt-1 5.00% 5.56% 6.00% [ 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
2 ADT-1 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% . 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
3 TIER-1 6.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
A Total Capital 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% . 10.00% 10.00%,
5 ceB - - 0.25% 0.65% 1.28% 1.50% 2.50%
0 Total Capital 10.00% 10.00% 10.23% 10.65% 11.28% 11.9G% 12,50%
plus CCB
S SNSRI

The Company’s regulatory capital under Basel [T framework is analyzed in following terms:
I Ther | Capital (going-concern capital)

1. Common Lguity Tier 1 (CET 1)
- Additional Tier 1 (AT

2. Ther 2 Capital (gone-concern capital)
Common Equity Tier 1 (CYT))

Common Lquity Tier 1 capital consist sum of the following items:

1. Fully paid up (common shares) capital / assigned capital.

n. Balunce in share premium account

i Reserve foi Issue of Bonus Shares

iv General/ Statutory Reserves as disclosed on the balance-sheet i

v. Mmority laterest (1n case of consolidation) '

v Up-appropriated / un remitted profits (net of eccumulated losses, 1 any) ! ,
vin Less regulatony adjustiments applicable of CE'T) as specilicd in Basel 111 L
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33.1

U A v

Additional Tier § Capital (AT1)

Addhtiopal Tier capital shall consist of the follewing items:

i. Instruments issued by banks that meet the qualifying criteria for A1 as specilied in Basct 111

ii. Share premium resulting {from the issuance of AT instruments.
1, Minority interesti.e. AT issued by consolidated parties te third partics.
v, Less regutatory adjusumiendis applicable on AT as specilied in Basel

Tier 2 ('.n"pil;ll (Gone Concern Capital or Supplementary Capital)

The Tier 2 capital (or gone concern capital) shall include the following clements: -
i. Suburdinated debt/instruments (mecting eligibility criteria as specified in Basel 111)
it. Share premium resulting trom the issue of instruments included in Tier 2.

ili. Minority Interest i.e. Tier -2 issued by consolidated subsidiaries ty third partied as specified in Bascl 1

v, Revaluation reserves (net of deficits, it any)

v. General pl'g\-‘isions or general Reserves for foan losscs

vi. Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves

vii. Undisclosed Reserves

viid Lass regulatory adjustiments applicable on Tier -2 capital as specificd in Basel it

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Cemmen Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1): Instraments & Reser res

Fully Pard-up Capital 7 Capital deposited with SBP
Balance i Share Premium Account
Reserve forissue of Bonas Shares
General / Stamtory Reserves (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)
Unappropriated 7 unremited profits - net of accunulated losses, i any (losses as
negative number)
Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued 1o third party by
consolidated company subsidiaries (from "Consolidation sheet")
CEY 1 before Regulatory Adjustments
Fatal Revadatory Adpustiment apphied (o ClEt
Common Equity Tier 1 (a
Additional Tier [ (AT 1) Capital
Qualitying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium
of which: Classified as equity '
of which: Classilied as liabilitics
Additional Tier-1 capital mstruments issued by consolidated subsi-liarics and held by
third paruies (amount allowed in group AT - from "Consolidation sheet")
AT belore Reguiatory Adjustments
Total of Regulaiory Adjustment applicd to AT capital
Additionat Tier 1 Capital recognized for Capital Adequacy

Tier | Capital (CET 1+ Admissible AT 1)

Tier 2 Capital

Quahlvmg (Baset 1y Tier 2 capital instruments

Capital nstroments subject W phase out irom uer 2

Tier 2 capital mstruments issued w third party by consohdated subsidiarics (amount
allowed 1 group tier 2 3

General Provisions or gencral reserves for toan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of
Credit Risk Weighted Assets

Revaluation Reserves (deficit) / surplus on AFS

12 before regulatory ndjustnents

Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applicd to T2 capital

Fier 2 Capitat (T2) after regulatory adjustment

Trer 2 Caprtal (12) recognized tor capital adequacy

Excess Addinonal Tier 1 Capital recognized 1 Tier 2 Capital
Total Tier 2 Capitat admissible for Capital Adequacy

TOTAL CAPI'TAL (T + adinissible T2)

33.1.2
b
(c=at+D)

33.1.3

[
It

(c+d)

2014

2013

Rupees in 000

3,001,000 3,001.000
743439 713,005
(1,864,143) (1,552.348)
1,880,296 2,161,657
66,393 9455

1.813.903)

2,152,502

R o
I | -
1,813,903 2,152,502
121.085 90,990
125,959 1 -
247,044 90,990
247,044 90,990
247,044 90,990
247,044 90,990°
2,060,947 2,243,492
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30.
31.
32.
33.

34,
35.
36.
37.

38.
39,
10.
41
2.
43.
.

33.1.1

1~

Q
{O.

1.
Ia N

wh

Total Risk Weinhted Assets
Total Credil Risk Weighted Assets
Total Market Risk Weighted Assels

Total Operational Risk Weighted Assets

Capital Adequacy Ratios (in percentage of Risk Weighted Assets)
CET! 10 total RWA

Ticr-1 capital to total RWA

Total capital to RWA

Lumits (Maxima/ Minima)

CET1 10 otal RWA

ADTI o wolal QWA

Tier-1 capital to1otal RWA
Tier-2 capital o total RWA
Total capital 19 RWA
Capital Conseryation Bufler

Total capitai ptus CCI3

REGUULATORY ADSUSTMENST
Commen Eguoity Tier 1 Capital (CE'T 1) Regulatory Adjustments

Goodwill (net ol any associated deferred tax liability)

Al other iitangibies (net o2 any associated delerred tax liability)

shortfil w provisions required against classified assets (without considening any tax
unpaat)

Deferred tax assels (net ol any associated deterred tax liability) excluding DTAs
ansing rom emporary differences such os allowance for credit iosses

Defined benelit pension fund assets (net of any associated delerred tax liability)
Reeiprocal cross hoidings in CET1 capital instruments of banking, linancial, and
insurance entities

Casit flow hedge 1eserve

Ivesumend jin own shares / CETT instruments

Any nerease in equity capital resulting {rom a securitivation trans wtion

Capitai shorilail of regulated subsidiaries

Defict on account of revaluation from Company's holdings ol projerty / AFS
Investmenis in the eapital instruments of banking, financial anc insurance entitics
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the company docs not
own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10%% threshold)
Significant investients in the capital instruments issued by banking, [nancial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of reguiatory consolidation (amount
above 0% threshold)

Deferred Tax Assels arising from temporary - differences  (anount above  10%
threshold, net of related tax liabihty)

Amoint cxcccding | 5% theeshold (significant Investments and DUA)

National specitic regulatory adjusimenis appiicd o CET1 capiiai

Investment in THCs of other banks exceeding the preseribed hmnt

Ay other deduction specilicd by SBP

Adjusiment o CETE w cover shortfall in AT1 adiustments

Total Regulatory Adjustment applied to CET |

2014

2013

Rupees in '000

() [ 10729214]  10,681.366]
6,991,703 7.876.937

797.853 188.763

2,939,056 2.615.606

(a/i) 16.91%
(efi) 16.91%
(efi) 19.21%

3.00%
1.50%
6.50%
3.50%
10.00%

10.00%

Can ) [

Amount
subjeet to Pre-
_ Basel T

Rupees in '000

20.15%
20.15%
21.00%

10.00%

i0.06%

2.262 2.363
- 0.792
64,131 320.637 -
66,393 ) 9.153
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33.1:2 0 Additionai Tier { (AT 1) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

21, Investment in nwitual funds exceeding  the  prescribed  limit (SBP - Specific

22 Investment in own AT capital instruments

23 Reciprocal cross holdings in” Additional Tier | capital instruments of buanking,

- {inancial. and insurance entitics
investments in the capital instruments ol banking, financial and ipsurance entities

24, that are ousside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the company does not
own more than 10% ol the 1ssued share capital (aimount above 10% threshold)

35 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banling, financial and

' insurance entitics that are outside the scone of regulatorv consolide tion
Portion of deduction applicd 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital bascd

6. on pre-Basel U1 wreatment which, during wansitionai period, remain subject to
deduction from ner-1 capital
Adjustment to AT1 to cover shortfall in T2 adjusiments

28. Total of Regulatory Adjusunent applicd o AT capital

3303 Tier 2 (12) Capital: Regulatory Adjustinent

29. Portion of deduction applied 30:30 to core capital and suppicmentary capital based
on pre-BBasel HE weaument which, duiing transitional period, remain subject o
deduction from tier-2 capital

30. Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments

3L Ivestment in own Vier 2 capital instrument

3. Investments in the capital instraments of banking, tinancial and insurance entities
that are owsie the scope ol regulatory consolidation, where the company docs hot
own more than 10% ol the ssued share capital (amount above 109 threshold)

33 Significant investments i the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and
insurance cniilies that are outside the scop2 ol regulatory consolidetion

34, Ameunt of Regulitory Adjustment applied to T2 capital

33.2 CAPITAL STRUCTURE RECONCILIATION

STLEDP 1

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treesury banks

Balances with uther banks I'
Lendings to financial institutions

[nvesiments et

Advances - net

Operating {ixed asscis

Deierred tax asset

Ouier assets

T

[ Amount

—————

subject to Pre-
Basel 111
Rupeey in '000

Balance Sheet

us in the Uniler
published Regulatory
tinancial seone
statements ]
T 2014 2004
Rupees in '000
70,155 HORRN
244,608 244,608
2,006,502 2,086,302
7.145.367 7,145,567
10,423,729 10425729
362,572 362,572
544,578 544.578
035,161 635,101
21,432,672 21,432,072
-
|
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LIABILITHES
Bills payable
Borrewings
Deposits and other accounts
Sub-ordmated loans
Liabilities against asscts subject o linance lease
Deferred 1ax liabilities
Other Liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Sliare capital

Reserves

Accumulated loss

Advance agamst issue of capital

Surplus on revaduation of assets

STkEP 2

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances wuh other banks
1endings to inancial institutins

linvestments - net
of which: Non significant capital investment in capital of other
Gnancral igstitution exceeding 10% threshold
of which: Non significant capital investment in financial scctor

- entities exceeding regulatory thireshold

of whitch. Mutal Fuid exceeding regulatory tirreshold

of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument

of which othas

Advances
of wineh: Shorttall i provision 7 excess of EL amount over ehigib!
provision under IRB

__ofswhich: General provision refiected in Tier 2 Canital ]

Operating fixed assets |
—of which: Intangibles . _

il')cl‘crrcal Tax Assets T I
Fooolwhich: DTA that rely on future profitabitity exciudmg those |
¥ arising froms tempoerary dirterences ‘
i ofwhich, DTA arising fron lemporan differences exceeding

{__regulatory thieshold ]

c
|

ance Sheet \

a3 in ike Under I

publisked Regulaiory |

ftngucial scope ‘

IS IR,
2014 2014

Rupees in ‘000

11242300 11,392,300

7,965,974 7,963,974
19,20827 19,358,274
2224398 2071398
3,001,060 3,001,000
743,439 743,430
_(1866,143)  {1,804,143)
1,880,296 1,886,296

208,143 13,143
e A22.929

2,224,398

y— —)
Balance [
Sheet as in - }] |
i he Cnder | |
pablished r(gul.nlo.y I Refeience i
. seape B
financial . !| I
Lt I D

2004

Rupees in "ol

70153

244,608
2.006,362
7,043,567

70155

244,608
2,000,502
7143567

- HI

b

- ¢

- d

70458 5067 i

121,083 g
2263 | t
WSS
334,378 Sda TR j
;’ -
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LIABILITIES

Buls payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities agatinst assets-subject to finance lease
Deferred tax habihities

Other Habitities

NETASSETS

Share capital

;
t of which: amount eligible tor CET | ‘—l
ol which: amount elipible for AT 1 1
Reserves

. ! ol‘\vhiuh.: amount eligible for CET 1
l ol which: amount cligible for Tier 2 _

Accumulated loss

Minoriiy Interest

\ of which: amount eligible for CET )
| . . . .
| o which: ainount cligble for AT |

| *

!

leo

ol which amount chgible for Ther 2

Advance ug

nsi 1ssue ol capital

Surplus eurevaluation of assels

(== j——

ol which Revaluation reserve on property
ol which: unrealized Gain/ Loss on AFS

1 case o Delicit on revaluation (deduction from CETI1)

STLEP 3

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET §): Instruments & Reserves

Fuliy Pand-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve tor issue of Bonus Shares

General? Statutory Reserver (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)

GamzLosses) on denvauves held as Cash Flow Hedge

Balance
Sheetas in
the
published
financial
_statements

Under
regulatory
scope

Reference

2

014

Rupees in 000

11,242,300

7,965.974

11,242 300

Unappropriated/unremitted profits - net of accumulated losses. if any {losses as.’

negikive number)

minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instimments issucd to third party by

consolidated bank subsidiaries (Irom "Consolidation sheet™)

CEF L before Reguliatory Adjusiments

7,965,974
19,208,274 - 19:208,274
2,224,398 2,224,398
3,001,000 3.001,000
5.001.000 3.001.000 j
- . - k
743,439 743,439
743,139 743.439 1
- - m
(1.864,143) (1,864.143) n
- - 0
- - l)
UL S P 4
218,143 218.i43
1239359 125,959
_ . r
125,959 125959 s
- t
2,224,398 2224398
Composent of Source based
regulatory .
X on reference
capital e
number from
reported by N
. Step 2
Company
3,001,000 i
745439 i
(1,804,143 1
S |
1,880,296 (

!
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Common l:”,quil)' Tier 1 Capitat (CET I): Regulatory Adjustments

Goodwill (net of any associated deferred tax liability)

All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax lability)

Shortfall in provisions required against classified assets (without <onsidering any tax
mpact)

Deferred tax assets (net of any associated deferred tax lability) excluding DTAs
arising from temporary differences such as allowance tor credit losses

Defined benelit pension fund assets (net of any associated deferred tax liability)
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instrimments of banking. financial, and
insurance entities

Cash flow hedge reserve

[nvestment in own shares/ CET instruments

ANy inerease in cquity capital resulting from a sceuritization ransiction

Capital shortlalh of regulated subsidiaries

Deficit on account of revalvation Irom Company's holdings of property/ AFS
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial anc insurance entilies
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the company does not
own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10%6 threshold)

Signiticant investments in the capital instruments issued by ban<ing, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
above 1 0% threshold)
Deferred Tax Asscts arising from (emporary differences (amount above 10%
threshold, net o related tax hability)
Amount exceeding 15% thieshold (significant Investments and D'TA)
National specitic regulatory adjustments applied to CETI capitai
myestment 1 TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit
Any other deduction specilied by SBP
Adjustment to CETT o cover shortlall in AT adjustments
Total Regutatory Adjustment applied to CET 1
Common Equily Tier 1 (a
Additional Tier (AT 1) Capital
Quabifving Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premiam
of which: Classified as equity
ol winieh: Classified as labilities

Addrtional Tier-1 capital instruiments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by third parties

Gamownt allowed in group AT - Trom "Consolidation sheet™) )
AT belore Regulatory Adjustments

o

Additional Tier (AT §) Capital: Regulatory Adjnstment

Investment in metual - funds  exceeding  the  preseribed it (SBP - Specitic
Investment m own ATH capital instruments

Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier | capital instruinents of banking,
financial, and insurance entities

Investments i the capital instrunients of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the company docs not
own more than 10% of the issucd share capital (mvount above 10%) threshold)
Significant imvestments m the capital instriments issued by bnhl;ing_ financial and
insurance entities that are oultside the scope of regulatory consolide tien

Portion of deduction applicd 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capita!l based
on pre-Baset WY treaunen. which, during uansitional perod, remain subject to
deduction fronvtier-1 capital

Adjustiment to AT to cover shortiall in T2 adjustments

Totat of Regulatory Adjustiment applied to AT capitai

Additional Tier 1 Capital reengnized for Capital Adequacy

Tier t Capital (CE'T 1+ Adinissible AT 1)

b

(= a+b)

Component of
regulatory

Source based
on reference

O 13Y

capital number from
reported by Sien 2
{ -
|___Company :
2202 h
- r
- d
- {

60,393
[ 1313903

Cowmpoaent of
regulatory

Source based
on relerence

capital .
'lr Vi number from
reported by .
P ) Step 2
Company
- ¢

—
n




33.3

Fier 2 Capital
Quahlying (Basel ill} Trer 2 capital instriments
Capital instruiments subject to phase out from tier 2

Tier 2 capital mstruments issued o third party by consolidated subsidiaries (amount
atlowed in group tier 2)

General Provisions or gencral reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of
Credit Risk Weighied Assets
Revaluation Reserves Surplus on AFS

T2 before regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 (12) Cupital: Regutatory Adjustment

Portion of deduction applied 50:30 1o core capiai and supplementary capital based
on pre-Rasel U weaument which, during transitional period, remain subject to
deduction from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross oldings i Tier 2 instruments

investinient in owar Tier 2 capital instrument

nvestments i the capitad insttuments of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the seope of regulatory consolidation, where the company does not
own maore han 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10%) threshold)
Significant mvestments in the eapital instruments issued by banizing, [inancial and
msurance entitivs that are outside the scope of regulatory consolide Lion

Amount of Regulatory Adiusiment applied to 12 capital

Tier 2 Capital (12)

Uier 2 Capital (123 recagnived for capital adeguacy

Fixeess Additonal Tier I Capital recognized in Tier 2 Capita)

Total Tier 2 Capital admissible for Capital Adequacy

TOTAL CAPITAL (11 + admissibie 12)

Capital Adequacy

The niskoweighted asses 1o capital ratio | caleulated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's guideiines on Capital Adequaey

was as [ollows:

Capital Re

(@

e= (c+d)

quirement

Component of
regulatory
capital
reporied by

121.085

125959

247.0:44

247,044

247,044

2,060,947

Source bascd

on reference

number fron
Step 2

Risic Weighted Assets

2014 2013 2014 2013
------------------------ Rupees in "000 —--mmemomommeeeee

Credit Risk

-Ou Babance Sheet .

Carporate Portioho 656 2.277 G.500 22,774

Banks/D) s 13,404 L4706 134.037 14,761

Public Sector Enuties - - - -

Soveretgn / Cash & Cash Eruivalent - - - B

loans secured against residential property 289,514 188.275 2.893. 114 1.882.753

Retaii ' 1,987 641 19,871 6413

Past duc Loans ) 196,207 428,599 1,962,069 4285993

Operating Fixed Asset 35970 20,028 359.693 260,281

Other Asscts 89313 61,001 803.153 610013

Lasted Eqguity invesunients and regulatory capital instruments issued

by other banks (other than those deducted fron: capital) held in the

company book. 7,80+ L_ 15,400 78,041 : 154,056

634.857 726,704 6,348,570 1,207,045

-OIf Batauee Sheet

Non Market related exposures 04,314 60,989 043,135 609,892

Total Credit Risk 099171 787,693 6991705 7.876,937
46



34,

Capital Requirement Risk Weigiited Assels

2014 2013 2014 2013
B Rupees in '600 S
Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk 79.785 18,876 797.853 188,763
79,785 18,876 797,853 188,763
Operation Risk 293,965 261,567 2,939,656 2,615,666

1,072,921 1.068,136 10729214 10,681,365

2013 2012
Rupees '000

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Total cligible regulatory capital held [ 2060947 2245492
Total Risk Weighted Assels i 10,729 214 10.681.366
Capital Adeguacy Ratio ‘ ’ (efi) _1921% 21.00%

»

RISK MANAGEMENT

Financsai Institutions are exposed to various risks m pursuit of their business objectives. The nature and complexity of these risks has
rapidly changed over time The failure o adequately manage these risks not only results in husiness losses but also places huardles in
achieving strategic objeeiives. Consequently, a solid and vigorous risk management flamewerk in the organization is requived.

The Company's risk Management Policy is in Hne with the Risk Managenient Guidelines of State Bank of Pakisiai and Basel [! Accord
The Risk Management Policy is approved by the Board of Dircetors.
Fhe risk management policies and procedures cover all activities of the Company including eredit evaluat.on, treasury and nivestnieni

aperanons  The basic principles cmployed in formulation ot the above policies and praceduwres involves denutication, measurement,
monitoring and contrelling risks to ensure that; -

- The Companmy’s risk exposare is within the limits established by the Board oi Directors.

- Rasictakmg deaisions are in hine with the busmess siraicgy and ob cetives ol the Company.
- The expected payolls compensate the risks taken by the company.

Risk profile of the Company

The key risks™are credit risk, liquidity risk. market risk and operational risk.

Risk Structures and Responsibilities

Urgamizavionai framework for Risk Management inctudes the follovang .

The Board of Directors is responsible for overall supervision of the risk management process. A Board Risk Management Committee has
been formed o regularly review risk related activities of the vrganization, The Board Risk Managenment Comntitiee is responsible

establish and implenient risk management framewoerk ol the Conpany.  Iadividual risks arc reviewed and controfled by various
commutlecs at managenent fevel like ALCG and Credit Connitlee.

Kisk Management Depariment is responsible for coordinating and i nplementing all the tisk management aetivities of tie Company. 1t
ensure that risks rermain within tie boundarics as defined by the Board, comply with the risk parameters and nradential finnts andg work
out remedial measuies. Vhie core fuaction is 1o identify, measure, riomtor and report key risks to witich vompany may be exposed. i

works in close coordinauon with all the functions aid business units that are involved in risk taking,



Risk Management departiment undertakes the following activities on regular basis utilizing the
overall risk framework: -

- Formulate policies and guidelines for maraging all risk categories.
S o

. Develop systems and procedures. These systems and procedures should be capable of
accurate measurement of the risks 1o identify deviation from approved risk parameters.

- Faciibate introduction and implementation of prudent practices for risk management.
- [lacilitate management in business decisions by providing analytical risk reviews.

- Communicate and liaise with other fun:tions and business units in carrying out risk
reviews, analysis and mitigation activities

34.1  Credit Risk -

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not settle an obtigation for full value,
cither when due or at any time therealter. This risk arises from the potential that a customer or
counterparty's willingness 10 meet an obligation or its ability to meet such an obligation is
impaired, resulting in an econoniic 10ss to the company.

Housing Finance is the core function of the Company and credit risk is the raajor risk faced by
the Company. Credit risk is incurred mainly in t1e tollowing two areas of its operations: -

- Inis credit operations, where it provides housing finance to retail or wholesale clients; and

In treasury operations where credit risk is incurrad with counterparties in its investiments in financial
markels and instiuments,

Overall credit risk is mownitored by Credit Committee at Head Office, which reviews and
recommends improvements in credit policics and monitors portfolio behavior. Vo lurther
strengthen credit risk management and credit sewup, proper delegation of credit decisions 4
committee level with appropriate approving limits has been made.

Following measures have been applied to govern credit policy of the Company: -

- Lending process and decision is based on a full appreciation of the risks inherent in the wansaction.
bl

Management monitors credit portfolio through MIS reports.
- Stress testing for individual credits and the overall credit portfolio under adverse changes in
the corditions 7 environment in which the borrovers operate.

- The Company has instituted an effective system for monitoring servicing of its perlorming credit
portfolio and collection of non performing portiolio.

- The Company creaies tean loss provisions against non-performing advances in accordance with
bl b=)
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP, '

34.1.1 Credit Risk Mitigation

it is the Company’s policy to reduce or mitigate credit risk on credit facilities or exposures, by

sceuring these with collaterals. To correctly assess the extent to which the collaterai mitigates

the credit risk the (:'o'l%.alc;‘al must be valued, according to a specitied valvation method, ™

documented and monitored. ' "‘-\
48



-~

In this regard {ollowing steps have been taken: -

- Outsourcing of property title verification,
- Outsourcing of borrower income veritication.

- Outsourcing ol property valuation.

Credit Risk is also mitigated through a set up of sub credit committec at Zonal and Regional
level for credit approvals depending upon the level of risk assumed. Overall credit risk is
monitored by central credit committee which reviews and recommends improvements in credit
policies.and moniters portfolio behavior,

To strengthen credit risk management and to fulfill SBP requirements, the company is working
lo develop and implement internal credit risk rating system for its entire credit portfolio.

Col_lnlter:'xll& Security

Collateral is -an important saitigant of - credit risk. All the residential mortgages are
collateralized. Valuation of the collateral is taken within agreed parameters. The legal
mechanism by which collaterals is plcdgcd ‘md the company's procedures ensure that the
company has clear rights over the collaterals dnd may liguidate, retain or take legal possession

Insurance Cover

= Lvery borrower and guarantor is insured for life and disability for repayment of the balance amount
ol the loans.

Lvery property taken as collaleral is insured.

Credit Councentration Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk related to the degree of diversification in the credit
portfolio, i.e. the risk inherent in doing busiress with large customers or not being equally

exposed across borrower types and geographical regions. The concentration risk can arise in
loan book as well as investment book.

34.1.1 Segmental information

Segmental Information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical! -
distribution of Advances, Deposits, Contingencies and Commitments. W
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34111 Segments by class of business

e s m s aeeomaen 2 R >
Conlingencies and
Housing finance Advances (Gross) ) Deposits Commitmeunts
' Rupces Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '0C0 Yo in '000 %o in '000 Yo
Individuals 12.842.687 98.06 - - - -
Others ' 254,133 1.94 - - 694,668 100.00
13,096,840 100.00 _ - - 694,668 100.00
R R 2013 - cc e e >
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo - '000 Yo in '000 Yo
Individuals 12,293,757 97.98 - - - -
Others 253,783 2.02 - - 639.731 100.00
12,547,540 100.00 - - 639,731 100.00
34.1.1.2  Segment by sector
R 2014 - - - - e >
Contingencies and
Advauces (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in '000 Yo
Public 7 Government 245,523 1.95 - - 200,000 28.79
Private 12,851,317 98.13 - - 194,668 71.21
13.090,840 100.00 - - 694608 100.00
Qe m o i m et oo ) R >
Coutingencies and
Advances (Gross) - Deposiis Comunitments
Rupees Pevcent Rupeces Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in '000 Vs
Public / Government 245,153 1.95 - - 200.000 31.26
Private 12.302.387 98.03 - ‘ - 439.731 68.74
12.547.540 106.00 - 639.73} 100.00
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34.2  Credit Risk-General Disclosures Basel 11 Spéciﬁc
34.2.1 Credit Risk - Geners] Disclosures

The Company has adopted the Standardized Approach of Basel Il for weighting its Credit
Risk Exposures.

34.2.2 Credit Risk Disclosures for portfolio subject to the Standardized Approach -Basel 11
Speceific
Under Standardized approach, the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to-
the counter parties by the External Credit Assessment Institution (ECAI) duly recognized by
SBP for capital adequacy puiposes. In this connection , the Company utilizes the credit rating
assiencd by recoenized agencies such PACRA and JCR-VIS.

Types of Exposures and ECAT's used

Current Year

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA ‘Oth(.“.*
. (Specify)
Corporate v v X
Banks " v v X
Savereigns X X X
SMI's X X X
Sceuritizations X X X
Others (Speeify) X X X

34.2.3 For exposurc aimnounts alter risk mitigation subject to standardized approach. amount of
g f
Company outstanding (rated & unrated) in ezch risk bucket as well ag those that ave deducted
are as follows: -

Credit Exposures subject to Standardized approach

Current Year

* Rating Anmount Deduction Net
Exposures Category #  Gutstanding CRM Amount
' i

Corporaie ' 21006 11,064 - 11,064

Banks ‘ V&S 2,663,488 1,871,457 792,023

Sovereigns ete. - 80,564 - 80,564

Unrated 10,978,265 - 10,978,269

13,733,385 1,871,457 | 1,861,920 1

CRM - Credit Risk Mitigation \"“\
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34.2.4 Credit Risk: Disclesures with respect (o Credit Risk Mitigation for Standardized

w
=

34,

4.

L

to .

tn

3.

—

To

Approaches-Base! I Specific

The Company hes adopted Simple Approach of Credit Risk Mitigation for the Banking Book.
[n instance where the Company's expesurz on an obligor is sccured by collateral that
conforms with the eligibility criterta under the Simple Approach of CRM, then the Company
reduces its exposure under that particular transaction by taking into account the risk
mitigating cflect of the collateral for the calculation of capital requircment. i.c. risk weight of
the collateral instrument securing the "expcsure is substituted for the risk weight of the
counterparty. In order to obtain the credit risk mitigation benefit, The Company uses
realizable vaiue of eligible collaterals te the extent of 80% of outstanding exposure.

Yquity poesition risk in the banking book-Basel II Specific

Al present Company has no investment position in cquity holdings.
Market Risk
Market Risk Management is the risk that the value of on and off - balance sheet positions of

the Company will be adversely affected by movements in market rates or prices such as
terest rates. foreign exchange rates. eauity prices, credit spreads and / or cormmodity prices

Ihe Company is exposed only to interest raie visk in its banking and trading book. Foreign
exchange risk and equity price risk is not appiicable to the Company.
The organization set up for Market Risk Management in the Company is as under: -

The Board of Directors

The Bourd Risli Management Committee (BRMC)

The Asser-Liability Paragement Conmittee {(ALCO); and

Respounsibilities of ALCO ,
Responsibilities of ALCO with regard to market risk managemment aspects include:
- Assess the Company’s current balance shest position.

- Review the appropriateness ol the existing strategies.

- Develop asset and habtlity strategies.

- et the quantifiable targets Lo achieve the assct Liability strategies.

- Product pricing ror borrowing and advances.

- Decide on desired maturity profile and mix ol incremental assels and habilitics.
- Review fiquidity & funding plans for the Company.

>

Exespfmsﬁili(ies of iiddie Office

The middle olfice performs treasury and nmiarket risk - management activities. -t is responsible
for verification of all the deals made by front office and monitoring of portfolio position. it is

1.
. > . ~ . . . - o~ 1
responsible for review of treasury policy. orocess and involve in research. It works jor i
measurement, modeling, mitigating, and repo ting of interest rate risk and liquidity risk. !
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34.4.2 Operationat Risk Disclosures-Basel ! Specific

the Company is currently using the Basic Indicator approach to calculate ithe capital charge for
Opeiational Risk as per Basel II reguiatery framework. The Company's operational risk management
tramework has been developed to create an environment within which operational risk can be identified,
weasured. managed and monitored in & consistent manner.

35, CORRESPONDING FIGURES
There were no major account balances reclassified ¢r rearranged during the year.

3e6. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on by the Board of
Dircctors of the Companv.

37. GENERAL
371 Vigures have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand rupees except stmed otherwise.
37.2 Cuptions as prescribed in BSD circuiar No. 4 datad February 17, 2066 issued by the State Bank ol

Pakistan in respect of which ne amounis arc outstanding have not been reproduced in these financiai
statemenits excent for in the balance sheet and the profit and loss account.
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